

Section I
**Notice of Development of Proposed Rules
and Negotiated Rulemaking**

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Consumer Services

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
5J-12.007 Enforcement Actions and Administrative Penalties

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rulemaking is to implement changes made by Section 2, Chapter 2019-73, Laws of Florida, and to make other revisions within the penalty section.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Penalty section.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 559.92201, 570.07(23) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 559.904(10)(b), (11), 559.921(4), 570.971(4) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: W. Alan Parkinson, Bureau Chief, Division of Consumer Services, 2005 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-6500, phone: (850)410-3697.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
33-601.800 Close Management

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Rulemaking is necessary to correct grammar and scrivener’s errors, to make the rule gender neutral, to clarify the review process prior to placing inmates in close management, to amend the non-contact visitation privileges of inmates in CMII, to amend the contact visitation privileges of inmates in CMIII, to clarify the telephone privileges of inmates in CMIII, to establish classification officer visitation requirements for inmates in close management, and to establish inmate privileges related to the possession of tablets, and the use of kiosks, kiosk services, tablet services, and video visitation while in close management.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Inmate privileges while in close management

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 944.09 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Paul Vazquez, 501 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
61-35.011 Cosmetology Departmental Forms

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect is to amend the rule to adopt updated forms relating to re-examination, continuing education and pre-licensure education requirements, as well as licensure related to Cosmetology.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The subject area to be addressed is the adoption of the new forms.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 455.203, 455.213, 455.279, 455.219(5), 477.0213 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.213, 455.217, 455.2179, 455.219, 455.2228, 455.271, 477.0132, 477.014, 477.019, 477.0201, 477.0212, 477.022, 477.025, 477.026, 477.0263, 559.79, 477.0213 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Aimee Odom, Rules Coordinator, Division of Professions, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0760, (850)717-1394.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
69A-3.012 Standards of the National Fire Protection Association and Other Standards Adopted

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Section 633.202, F.S., requires the State Fire Marshal to adopt a new edition of the Florida Fire Prevention Code every three years. The proposed amendments

will update the Florida Fire Prevention Code to include the most recent edition of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) standards and will include the Florida-specific amendments to NFPA 1, the Fire Code, and the Florida-specific amendments to NFPA 101, the Life Safety Code®

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Update of the Florida Fire Prevention Code

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 633.104(1), 633.202, 633.206, 633.222 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 633.104(1), 633.202, 633.206, 633.222, 791.012 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 7, 2019, 10:00 a.m. - Noon

PLACE: Hilton Daytona Beach Oceanfront Resort, 100 North Atlantic Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Belinda Chukes at (850)413-3619 or Belinda.Chukes@myfloridacfo.com If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Casia Sinco, Chief, Bureau of Fire Prevention, address: 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342; phone: (850)413-3620; or email: Casia.Sinco@myfloridacfo.com.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
69A-60.002	Scope; Description of Florida Fire Prevention Code
69A-60.003	Standards of the National Fire Protection Association, NFPA 1, the Fire Code, Florida 2018 <u>2015</u> Edition, Adopted
69A-60.004	Standards of the National Fire Protection Association, NFPA 101, the Life Safety Code®, Florida 2018 <u>2015</u> Edition, Adopted
69A-60.005	Publications Referenced in NFPA 1, the Florida 2018 <u>2015</u> Edition, and NFPA 101, the Florida 2018 <u>2015</u> Edition, Added to the Florida Fire Prevention Code

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Section 633.202, F.S., requires the State Fire Marshal to adopt a new edition of the Florida Fire

Prevention Code every three years. The proposed amendments will update the Florida Fire Prevention Code to include the most recent edition of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) standards and will include the Florida-specific amendments to NFPA 1, the Fire Code, and the Florida-specific amendments to NFPA 101, the Life Safety Code®.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Update of the Florida Fire Prevention Code.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 633.104, 633.202, 633.208, 791.012 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 7, 2019, 10:00 a.m. - Noon

PLACE: Hilton Daytona Beach Oceanfront Resort, 100 North Atlantic Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting Belinda Chukes at (850)413-3619 or Belinda.Chukes@myfloridacfo.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Casia Sinco, Chief, Bureau of Fire Prevention, address: 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342; phone: (850)413-3620; or email: Casia.Sinco@myfloridacfo.com. A copy of the preliminary draft is also available at: <http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/GeneralCounsel/RuleWorkshopMeetings/default.asp>.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

69A-60.002 Scope; Description of Florida Fire Prevention Code.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3)(a) The Florida Fire Prevention Code consists of:

1. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 1, the Fire Code, Florida ~~2018~~ 2015 edition, as adopted in rule 69A-60.003, F.A.C.;

2. NFPA 101, the Life Safety Code®, Florida ~~2018~~ 2015 edition, as adopted and incorporated in rule 69A-60.004, F.A.C., and their additions, deletions, and other modifications

to NFPA 1 and NFPA 101, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ editions, as provided therein; and,

3. All codes, standards, publications, and authorities adopted in rule 69A-60.005, F.A.C.

(b) through (d) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: December 31, 2020.

Rulemaking Authority 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS. Law Implemented 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS. History—New 11-15-01, Formerly 4A-60.002, Amended 11-28-04, 5-18-08, 12-31-08, 12-31-11, 12-31-14, 12-31-17, 12-31-20.

69A-60.003 Standards of the National Fire Protection Association, NFPA 1, the Fire Code, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ Edition, Adopted.

(1) NFPA 1, the Fire Code, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ edition (as amended 4/2018 to amend Section 50.7—Mobile and Temporary Cooking Operations), is hereby adopted and incorporated herein by reference and shall take effect on the effective date of this rule as a part of the Florida Fire Prevention Code.

(2)(a) NFPA 1, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, may be purchased by writing to the NFPA at 1 Batterymarch Park, Quincy, Massachusetts 02169-7471.

(b) All codes, standards, publications, and authorities adopted and incorporated by reference in this rule chapter are also available for public inspection during regular business hours at the Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal, Department of Financial Services, 325 John Knox Road, The Atrium, Third Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32303 and may be accessed in a read-only, non-printable, non-downloadable format at the Division of State Fire Marshal website whose address is <http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/SFM>.

(c) NFPA 1, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, may also be purchased at the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training, Division of State Fire Marshal, 11655 Northwest Gainesville Road, Ocala, Florida 34482.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: December 31, 2010.

Rulemaking Authority 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS. Law Implemented 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS. History—New 11-15-01, Formerly 4A-60.003, Amended 11-28-04, 5-18-08, 12-31-08, 12-31-11, 5-1-13, 12-31-14, 12-31-17, 11-11-18, 12-31-20.

69A-60.004 Standards of the National Fire Protection Association, NFPA 101, the Life Safety Code®, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ Edition, Adopted.

(1) NFPA 101, the Life Safety Code®, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, is hereby adopted and incorporated herein by reference

and shall take effect on the effective date of this rule as a part of the Florida Fire Prevention Code.

(2)(a) NFPA 101, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ edition may be purchased by writing to the NFPA at 1 Batterymarch Park, Quincy, Massachusetts 02169-7471.

(b) All codes, standards, publications, and authorities adopted and incorporated by reference in this rule chapter are also available for public inspection during regular business hours at the Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal, Department of Financial Services, 325 John Knox Road, The Atrium, Third Floor, Tallahassee, Florida 32303 and may be accessed in a read-only, non-printable, non-downloadable format at the Division of State Fire Marshal website whose address is <https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/SFM/BFP/FloridaFirePreventionCodePage.htm>.

~~<http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/SFM>~~

(c) NFPA 101, Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, may also be purchased at the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training, Division of State Fire Marshal, 11655 Northwest Gainesville Road, Ocala, Florida 34482.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: December 31, 2020.

Rulemaking Authority 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS. Law Implemented 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS. History—New 11-15-01, Formerly 4A-60.004, Amended 11-28-04, 7-12-06, 5-18-08, 12-31-08, 12-31-11, 12-31-14, 12-31-17, 12-31-20.

69A-60.005 Publications Referenced in NFPA 1, the Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ Edition, and NFPA 101, the Florida 2018 ~~2015~~ Edition, Added to the Florida Fire Prevention Code.

(1) No change.

(2) The following publications are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference herein and added to the Florida Fire Prevention Code and shall take effect on the effective date of this rule:

(a) NFPA 2, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Hydrogen Technologies Code.

~~(b) NFPA 3, 2015 edition, Recommended Practice for Commissioning of Fire Protection and Life Safety Systems.~~

~~(b)(e)~~ NFPA 4, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for Integrated Fire Protection and Life Safety System Testing.

~~(c)(d)~~ NFPA 10, 2018 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers.

~~(d)(e)~~ NFPA 11, 2016 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard for Low-, Medium- and High-Expansion Foam.

~~(e)(f)~~ NFPA 12, 2015 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard on Carbon Dioxide Extinguishing Systems.

~~(f)(g)~~ NFPA 12A, 2015 ~~2009~~ edition, Standard on Halon 1301 Fire Extinguishing Systems.

~~(g)(h)~~ NFPA 13, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems.

~~(h)(i)~~ NFPA 13D, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One- and Two- Family Dwellings and Manufactured Homes.

~~(i)(j)~~ NFPA 13R, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in Low-Rise Residential Occupancies.

~~(j)(k)~~ NFPA 14, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Standpipe, and Hose Systems.

~~(k)(l)~~ NFPA 15, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for Water Spray Fixed Systems for Fire Protection.

~~(l)(m)~~ NFPA 16, 2015 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Foam-Water Sprinkler and Foam-Water Spray Systems.

~~(m)(n)~~ NFPA 17, 2017 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Dry Chemical Extinguishing Systems.

~~(n)(o)~~ NFPA 17A, 2017 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Wet Chemical Extinguishing Systems.

~~(o)(p)~~ NFPA 20, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Stationary Pumps for Fire Protection.

~~(p)(q)~~ NFPA 22, 2013 edition, Standard for Water Tanks for Private Fire Protection.

~~(q)(r)~~ NFPA 24, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Private Fire Service Mains and Their Appurtenances.

~~(r)(s)~~ NFPA 25, 2017 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for the Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance of Water-Based Fire Protection Systems.

~~(s)(t)~~ NFPA 30, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Flammable and Combustible Liquids Code.

~~(t)(u)~~ NFPA 30A, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Code for Motor Fuel Dispensing Facilities and Repair Garages.

~~(u)(v)~~ NFPA 30B, 2015 edition, Code for the Manufacture and Storage of Aerosol Products.

~~(v)(w)~~ NFPA 31, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Oil-Burning Equipment.

~~(w)(x)~~ NFPA 32, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for Drycleaning Plants.

~~(x)(y)~~ NFPA 33, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for Spray Application Using Flammable or Combustible Materials.

~~(y)(z)~~ NFPA 34, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for Dipping, Coating, and Printing Processes Using Flammable or Combustible Liquids.

~~(z)(aa)~~ NFPA 35, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for the Manufacture of Organic Coatings.

~~(aa)(bb)~~ NFPA 36, 2017 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Solvent Extraction Plants.

~~(bb)(cc)~~ NFPA 37, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for the Installation and Use of Stationary Combustion Engines and Gas Turbines.

~~(cc)(dd)~~ NFPA 40, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for the Storage and Handling of Cellulose Nitrate Film.

~~(dd)(ee)~~ NFPA 45, 2015 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard on Fire Protection for Laboratories Using Chemicals.

~~(ee)(ff)~~ NFPA 51, 2018 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Design and Installation of Oxygen-Fuel Gas Systems for Welding, Cutting and Allied Processes.

~~(gg)~~ NFPA 51A, ~~2012~~ edition, ~~Standard for Acetylene Cylinder Charging Plants.~~

~~(ff)(hh)~~ NFPA 51B, 2014 edition, Standard for Fire Prevention During Welding, Cutting and Other Hot Work.

~~(gg)(ii)~~ NFPA 52, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Vehicular Gaseous Fuel Systems Code.

~~(hh)(jj)~~ NFPA 54, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, National Fuel Gas Code.

~~(ii)(kk)~~ NFPA 55, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Compressed Gases and Cryogenic Fluids Code.

~~(jj)~~ NFPA 56, 2017 edition, Standard for Fire and Explosion Prevention During Cleaning and Purging of Flammable Gas Piping Systems.

~~(kk)(ll)~~ NFPA 58, 2017 ~~2014~~ edition, Liquefied Petroleum Gas Code.

~~(ll)(mmm)~~ NFPA 59, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Utility LP-Gas Plant Code.

~~(mm)(nn)~~ NFPA 59A, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Production, Storage, and Handling of Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG).

~~(nn)(oo)~~ NFPA 61, 2017 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Prevention of Fires and Dust Explosions in Agricultural and Food Processing Facilities.

~~(oo)(pp)~~ NFPA 68, 2013 edition, Standard on Explosion Protection by Deflagration Venting.

~~(pp)(qq)~~ NFPA 69, 2014 edition, Standard on Explosion Prevention Systems.

~~(qq)(rr)~~ NFPA 70, 2017 ~~2014~~ edition, National Electrical Code®.

~~(rr)(ss)~~ NFPA 72, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, National Fire Alarm and Signaling Code.

~~(ss)(tt)~~ NFPA 75, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for the Fire Protection of Information Technology Equipment.

~~(tt)(uu)~~ NFPA 76, 2016 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for the Fire Protection of Telecommunications Facilities.

~~(uu)(vv)~~ NFPA 80, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Fire Doors and Other Opening Protectives.

~~(vv)(ww)~~ NFPA 82, 2014 edition, Standard on Incinerators and Waste and Linen Handling Systems and Equipment.

~~(ww)(xx)~~ NFPA 85, 2015 ~~2014~~ edition, Boiler and Combustion Systems Hazards Code.

~~(xx)(yy)~~ NFPA 86, 2015 edition, Standard for Ovens and Furnaces.

~~(yy)(zz)~~ NFPA 88A, 2015 edition, Standard for Parking Structures.

~~(zz)(aaa)~~ NFPA 90A, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Air-Conditioning and Ventilating Systems.

~~(aaa)(bbb)~~ NFPA 90B, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for the Installation of Warm Air Heating and Air-Conditioning Systems.

~~(bbb)(eee)~~ NFPA 91, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard for Exhaust Systems for Air Conveying of Vapors, Gases, Mists, and Noncombustible Particulate Solids.

~~(ccc)(ddd)~~ NFPA 92, 2015 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for Smoke-Control Systems.

~~(ddd)(eee)~~ NFPA 96, 2017 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for Ventilation Control and Fire Protection of Commercial Cooking Operations. ~~Section 10.2.3 of NFPA 96 applies prospectively only. Existing installations are permitted to remain in place subject to the approval of the authority having jurisdiction.~~

~~(eee)(fff)~~ NFPA 99, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Health Care Facilities Code.

~~(fff)~~ NFPA 99B, 2018 edition, Standard for Hypobaric Facilities.

~~(ggg)~~ NFPA 101, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Life Safety Code®.

~~(hhh)~~ NFPA 101A, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Guide on Alternative Approaches to Life Safety.

~~(iii)~~ NFPA 102, 2016 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard for Grandstands, Folding and Telescopic Seating, Tents and Membrane Structures.

~~(jjj)~~ NFPA 105, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Smoke Door Assemblies and Other Opening Protectives.

~~(kkk)~~ NFPA 110, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Emergency and Standby Power Systems.

~~(lll)~~ NFPA 111, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard on Stored Electrical Energy Emergency and Standby Power Systems.

~~(mmm)~~ NFPA 115, 2016 edition, Standard for Laser Fire Protection.

~~(nnn)(mmm)~~ NFPA 120, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard for Fire Prevention and Control in Coal Mines.

~~(ooo)(nnn)~~ NFPA 122, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard for Fire Prevention and Control in Metal/Nonmetal Mining and Metal Mineral Processing Facilities.

~~(ppp)(ooo)~~ NFPA 130, 2017 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for Fixed Guideway Transit and Passenger Rail Systems.

~~(qqq)(ppp)~~ NFPA 140, 2013 edition, Standard on Motion Picture and Television Production Studio Soundstages, Approved Production Facilities, and Production Locations.

~~(rrr)(qqq)~~ NFPA 150, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard on Fire and Life Safety in Animal Housing Facilities.

~~(sss)(rrr)~~ NFPA 160, 2016 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard for the Use of Flame Effects Before an Audience.

~~(ttt)(sss)~~ NFPA 170, 2015 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for Fire Safety and Emergency Symbols.

~~(uuu)(ttt)~~ NFPA 204, 2015 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for Smoke and Heat Venting.

~~(vvv)(uuu)~~ NFPA 211, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Chimneys, Fireplaces, Vents, and Solid Fuel-Burning Appliances.

~~(www)(vvv)~~ NFPA 221, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for High Challenge Fire Walls, Fire Walls and Fire Barrier Walls.

~~(xxx)(www)~~ NFPA 232, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for the Protection of Records.

~~(yyy)(xxx)~~ NFPA 241, 2013 edition, Standard for Safeguarding Construction, Alteration, and Demolition Operations.

~~(zzz)~~ NFPA 251, 2006 edition, Standard Methods of Tests of Fire Resistance of Building Construction and Materials.

~~(aaaa)(yyy)~~ NFPA 252, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard Methods of Fire Tests of Door Assemblies.

~~(bbbb)(zzz)~~ NFPA 253, 2015 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard Method of Test for Critical Radiant Flux of Floor Covering Systems Using a Radiant Heat Energy Source.

~~(cccc)(aaaa)~~ NFPA 257, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard on Fire Test for Window and Glass Block Assemblies.

~~(dddd)(bbb)~~ NFPA 259, 2013 edition, Standard Test Method for Potential Heat of Building Materials.

~~(eeee)(eeee)~~ NFPA 260, 2013 edition, Standard Methods of Tests and Classification System for Cigarette Ignition Resistance of Components of Upholstered Furniture.

~~(fff)(ddd)~~ NFPA 261, 2013 edition, Standard Method of Test for Determining Resistance of Mock-Up Upholstered Furniture Material Assemblies to Ignition by Smoldering Cigarettes.

~~(gggg)(eeee)~~ NFPA 265, 2015 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard Methods of Fire Tests for Evaluating Room Fire Growth Contribution of Textile or Expanded Vinyl Wall Coverings on Full Height Panels and Walls.

~~(hhhh)(ffff)~~ NFPA 286, 2015 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard Methods of Fire Tests for Evaluating Contribution of Wall and Ceiling Interior Finish to Room Fire Growth.

~~(iii)(gggg)~~ NFPA 288, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard Methods of Fire Tests of Horizontal Fire Door Assemblies Installed in Horizontal Fire Resistance-Rated Assemblies.

~~(jjj)(hhhh)~~ NFPA 289, 2013 edition, Standard Method of Fire Test for Individual Fuel Packages.

~~(kkkk)~~ NFPA 301, 2018 edition, Code for Safety to Life from Fire on Merchant Vessels.

~~(lll)(iii)~~ NFPA 302, 2015 edition, Fire Protection Standard for Pleasure and Commercial Motor Craft.

~~(mmmm)(jjj)~~ NFPA 303, 2016 ~~2011~~ edition, Fire Protection Standard for Marinas and Boatyards.

~~(nnnn)(kkkk)~~ NFPA 307, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for the Construction and Fire Protection of Marine Terminals, Piers, and Wharves.

~~(oooo)(llll)~~ NFPA 312, 2016 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for Fire Protection of Vessels During Construction, Conversion, Repair, and Lay-Up.

~~(pppp)(mmmm)~~ NFPA 318, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for the Protection of Semiconductor Fabrication Facilities.

~~(qqqq)(nnnn)~~ NFPA 326, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard for the Safeguarding of Tanks and Containers for Entry, Cleaning, or Repair.

~~(rrrr)(oooo)~~ NFPA 385, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for Tank Vehicles for Flammable and Combustible Liquids.

~~(ssss)(pppp)~~ NFPA 400, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Hazardous Materials Code.

~~(tttt)~~ NFPA 403, 2018 edition, Standard for Aircraft Rescue and Fire-Fighting Services at Airports.

~~(uuuu)(qqqq)~~ NFPA 407, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for Aircraft Fuel Servicing.

~~(vvvv)(rrrr)~~ NFPA 408, 2017 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard for Aircraft Hand Portable Fire Extinguishers.

~~(wwww)(ssss)~~ NFPA 409, 2016 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard on Aircraft Hangars.

~~(xxxx)(tttt)~~ NFPA 410, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard on Aircraft Maintenance.

~~(yyyy)(uuuu)~~ NFPA 415, 2016 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard on Airport Terminal Buildings, Fueling Ramp Drainage, and Loading Walkways.

~~(zzzz)(vvvv)~~ NFPA 418, 2016 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard for Heliports.

~~(aaaa)~~ NFPA 423, 2016 edition, Construction and Protection of Aircraft Engine Test Facilities.

~~(wwww)~~ NFPA 430, 2004 edition, Code for the Storage of Liquid and Solid Oxidizers.

~~(bbbb)(xxxx)~~ NFPA 484, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for Combustible Metals.

~~(cccc)(yyyy)~~ NFPA 495, 2013 edition, Explosive Materials Code.

~~(dddd)(zzzz)~~ NFPA 498, 2013 edition, Standard for Safe Havens and Interchange Lots for Vehicles Transporting Explosives.

~~(eeee)(aaaa)~~ NFPA 501, 2017 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard on Manufactured Housing.

~~(ffff)(bbbb)~~ NFPA 501A, 2017 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Fire Safety Criteria for Manufactured Home Installations, Sites, and Communities.

~~(gggg)~~ NFPA 502, 2017 edition, Standard for Road Tunnels, Bridges, and Other Limited Access Highways.

~~(hhhh)(eeee)~~ NFPA 505, 2013 edition, Fire Safety Standard for Powered Industrial Trucks Including Type

Designations, Areas of Use, Conversions, Maintenance and Operations.

~~(iiii)(ddddd)~~ NFPA 601, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard for Security Services in Fire Loss Prevention.

~~(jjjj)~~ NFPA 652, 2016 edition, Standard on the Fundamentals of Combustible Dust.

~~(kkkk)(eeee)~~ NFPA 654, 2013 edition, Standard for the Prevention of Fire and Dust Explosions from the Manufacturing, Processing, and Handling of Combustible Particulate Solids.

~~(llll)(ffff)~~ NFPA 655, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for Prevention of Sulfur Fires and Explosions.

~~(mmmm)(gggg)~~ NFPA 664, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard for the Prevention of Fires and Explosions in Wood Processing and Woodworking Facilities.

~~(nnnn)(hhhh)~~ NFPA 701, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Standard Methods of Fire Tests for Flame Propagation of Textiles and Films.

~~(oooo)(iiii)~~ NFPA 703, 2015 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard for Fire Retardant-Treated Wood and Fire-Retardant Coatings for Building Materials.

~~(pppp)(jjjj)~~ NFPA 704, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard System for Identification of the Hazards of Materials for Emergency Response.

~~(qqqq)(kkkk)~~ NFPA 720, 2015 edition, Standard for the Installation of Carbon Monoxide (CO) Detection and Warning Equipment.

~~(rrrr)~~ NFPA 731, 2017 edition, Standard for the Installation of Electronic Premises Security Systems.

~~(ssss)(llll)~~ NFPA 750, 2015 edition, Standard on Water Mist Fire Protection Systems.

~~(tttt)~~ NFPA 780, 2017 edition, Standard for the Installation of Lightning Protection Systems.

~~(uuuu)~~ NFPA 801, 2014 edition, Standard for Fire Protection for Facilities Handling Radioactive Materials.

~~(vvvv)~~ NFPA 804, 2015 edition, Standard for Fire Protection for Advanced Light Water Reactor Electric Generating Plants.

~~(wwww)~~ NFPA 805, 2015 edition, Performance-Based Standard for Fire Protection for Light Water Reactor Electric Generating Plants.

~~(xxxx)~~ NFPA 820, 2016 edition, Standard for Fire Protection in Wastewater Treatment and Collection Facilities.

~~(yyyy)(mmmm)~~ NFPA 909, 2017 ~~2013~~ edition, Code for the Protection of Cultural Resources Properties – Museums, Libraries, and Places of Worship.

~~(zzzz)(nnnn)~~ NFPA 914, 2015 ~~2010~~ edition, Code for Fire Protection of Historic Structures.

~~(aaaaa)(oooo)~~ NFPA 1122, 2018 ~~2013~~ edition, Code for Model Rocketry.

~~(bbbbbb)(ppppp)~~ NFPA 1123, 1995 ~~2010~~ edition, Code for Fireworks Display.

~~(cccccc)(qqqqq)~~ NFPA 1124, 2017 ~~2006~~ edition, Code for the Manufacture, Transportation, Storage and Retail Sales of Fireworks and Pyrotechnic Articles.

~~(dddddd)(rrrrr)~~ NFPA 1125, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Code for the Manufacture of Model Rocket and High Power Rocket Motors.

~~(eeeeee)(sssss)~~ NFPA 1126, 2016 ~~2011~~ edition, Standard for the Use of Pyrotechnics before a Proximate Audience.

~~(ffffff)(ttttt)~~ NFPA 1127, 2018 ~~2013~~ edition, Code for High Powered Rocketry.

(gggggg) NFPA 1141, 2017 edition, Standard for Fire Protection Infrastructure for Land Development in Wildland, Rural, and Suburban Areas.

~~(hhhhhh)(uuuuu)~~ NFPA 1142, 2017 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard on Water Supplies for Suburban and Rural Fire Fighting.

~~(iiiiii)(vvvvv)~~ NFPA 1144, 2018 ~~2013~~ edition, Standard for Reducing Structure Ignition Hazards from Wildland Fire.

~~(jjjjjj)(wwwww)~~ NFPA 1192, 2018 ~~2015~~ edition, Standard on Recreational Vehicles.

~~(kkkkkk)(xxxxx)~~ NFPA 1194, 2018 ~~2014~~ edition, Standard for Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds.

~~(llllll)(yyyyy)~~ NFPA 1221, 2016 edition, Standard for the Installation, Maintenance, and Use of Emergency Services Communications Systems.

(mmmmmm) NFPA 1730, 2016 edition, Standard on Organization and Deployment of Fire Prevention Inspection and Code Enforcement, Plan Review, Investigation, and Public Education Operations.

(nnnnnn) NFPA 1901, 2016 edition, Standard for Automotive Fire Apparatus.

(oooooo) NFPA 1906, 2016 edition, Standard for Wildland Fire Apparatus.

(pppppp) NFPA 1925, 2013 edition, Standard on Marine Fire-Fighting Vessels.

~~(qqqqqq)(zzzzz)~~ NFPA 1963, 2014 edition, Standard for Fire Hose Connections.

~~(rrrrrr)(aaaaa)~~ NFPA 2001, 2015 ~~2012~~ edition, Standard on Clean Agent Fire Extinguishing Systems.

(ssssss) NFPA 2010, 2015 edition, Standard for Fixed Aerosol Fire Extinguishing Systems.

(tttttt) NFPA 2113, 2015 edition, Standard on Selection, Care, Use, and Maintenance of Flame-Resistant Garments for Protection of Industrial Personnel Against Short-Duration Thermal Exposures from Fire.

(uuuuuu)(bbbbbb) SFPE Engineering Guide to Performance-Based Fire Protection Analysis and Design of Buildings, Society of Fire Protection Engineers, Bethesda, Maryland 2000 edition.

~~(vvvvvv)(eeeeee)~~ The portions of ANSI A14.3-2002, Safety Code for Fixed Ladders, which pertain to fire escape ladders and which may be obtained at American National Standards Institute, 25 West 43rd Street, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10036.

~~(wwwwww)(ddddd)~~ Chapter 4, Accessible Routes, ICC/ANSI A117.1-1998, which may be obtained at American National Standard for Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities, American National Standards Institute, 25 West 43rd Street, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10036.

~~(xxxxxx)(eeeee)~~ The portions of ANSI A1264.1-1995, Safety Requirements for Workplace Floor and Wall Openings, Stairs and Railing Systems, which pertain to fire escape ladders and which may be obtained at American National Standards Institute, 25 West 43rd Street, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10036.

~~(yyyyyy)(fffff)~~ ANSI/UL 2079, 2004 ~~1998~~ edition, revised 2014, Test of Fire Resistance of Building Joint Systems, which may be obtained at Underwriters Laboratories Inc., 333 Pfingsten Rd., Northbrook, IL 60062.

~~(zzzzzz)(ggggg)~~ The portions of ASME/ANSI A17.1-2000, Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators, which may be obtained at American Society of Mechanical Engineers, Three Park Avenue, New York, NY 10016-5990.

~~(aaaaaa)(hhhhh)~~ The portions of ASME/ANSI A17.3-2002, Safety Code for Existing Elevators and Escalators, which may be obtained at American Society of Mechanical Engineers, Three Park Avenue, New York, NY 10016-5990.

~~(bbbbbb)(iiiiii)~~ ASTM D 2898, ~~-10~~ 94, ~~(Reapproved 1999)~~, Test Method for Accelerated Weathering of Fire Retardant-Treated Wood for Fire Testing, which may be obtained at American Society for Testing and Materials, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959.

~~(cccccc)(jjjjj)~~ ASTM E 136-2016 ~~1999~~, Standard Test Method for Behavior of Materials in a Vertical Tube Furnace at 750°C, which may be obtained at American Society for Testing and Materials, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959.

~~(dddddd)(kkkkk)~~ ASTM E 1537, 2015 ~~2001~~ edition, Standard Test Method for Fire Testing of Upholstered Furniture, which may be obtained at American Society for Testing and Materials, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959.

~~(eeeeee)(lllll)~~ ASTM E 1590-~~01~~, 2013 edition, Standard Test Method for Fire Testing of Mattresses, American Society for Testing and Materials, which may be obtained at 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959.

~~(ffffff)(mmmmm)~~ ASTM E 1591-~~00~~, 2013 edition, Standard Guide for Obtaining Data for Deterministic Fire Models, which may be obtained at American Society for Testing and Materials, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959.

~~(ggggggg)(nnnnnn)~~ ASTM F 851-1987 (Reapproved 1991), Standard Test Method for Self-Rising Seat Mechanisms, which may be obtained at American Society for Testing and Materials, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959, but only to the extent referenced in Subdivision 12.2.5.5.1 and 12.2.5.5.2 of NFPA 101, 2000 edition.

~~(hhhhhhh)(oooooo)~~ ANSI/BHMA A-156.19-2002, American National Standard for Power Assist and Low Energy Power Operated Doors, which may be obtained at Buildings Hardware Manufacturers Association, 355 Lexington Avenue, 17th Floor, New York, NY 10017-6603.

~~(iiiiiii)(pppppp)~~ ANSI/UL 924, Standard for Safety Emergency Lighting and Power Equipment, Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., which may be obtained at 333 Pfingsten Rd., Northbrook, IL 60062.

~~(jjjjjj)(qqqqqq)~~ ANSI/UL 1975, Standard for Fire Tests for Foamed Plastics Used for Decorative Purposes, Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., which may be obtained at 333 Pfingsten Rd., Northbrook, IL 60062.

(3) through (5) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE: December 31, 2020.

Rulemaking Authority 633.104, 633.202, 633.208 FS. Law Implemented 633.104, 633.202, 633.208, 791.012 FS. History—New 11-15-01, Formerly 4A-60.005, Amended 11-28-04, 5-18-08, 12-31-08, 4-25-12, 12-31-14, 12-31-17, 12-31-20.

Section II Proposed Rules

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling

RULE NO.: 64B4-2.002
 RULE TITLE: Definition of "Supervision" for Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to clarify supervision requirements.

SUMMARY: The rule will advise supervisors of the number of interns they can supervise.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the

statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 491.004(5), 491.0045, 491.005(1)(c), (3)(c), (4)(c) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 491.005(1)(c), (3)(c), (4)(c) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Janet Hartman, Executive Director, Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B4-2.002 Definition of "Supervision" for Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling.

Supervision is the relationship between the qualified supervisor and intern that promotes the development of responsibility, skills, knowledge, attitudes and adherence to ethical, legal and regulatory standards in the practice of clinical social work, marriage and family therapy and mental health counseling. Supervision is contact between an intern and a supervisor during which the intern appraises the supervisor of the diagnosis and treatment of each client, client cases are discussed, the supervisor provides the intern with oversight and guidance in diagnosing, treating and dealing with clients, and the supervisor evaluates the intern's performance.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) A qualified supervisor shall supervise no more than 25 registered interns simultaneously.

Rulemaking Authority 491.004(5), 491.0045, 491.005(1)(c), (3)(c), (4)(c) FS. Law Implemented 491.005(1)(c), (3)(c), (4)(c) FS. History—New 7-6-88, Amended 3-21-90, Formerly 21CC-2.002, 61F4-2.002,

Amended 1-7-96, 12-16-96, Formerly 59P-2.002, Amended 11-13-97, 10-28-98, 1-1-07, 3-14-07, 2-9-16, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 15, 2019

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 9, 2019

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Dentistry

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

- 64B5-14.001 Definitions
- 64B5-14.002 Prohibitions
- 64B5-14.0025 Application for Permit
- 64B5-14.003 Training, Education, Certification, and Requirements for Issuance of Permits
- 64B5-14.0032 Itinerate/Mobile Anesthesia - Physician Anesthesiologist
- 64B5-14.0034 Itinerate/Mobile Anesthesia - General Anesthesia Permit Holders
- 64B5-14.0036 Treatment of Sedated Patients by Dentists Without an Anesthesia Permit
- 64B5-14.004 Additional Requirements
- 64B5-14.006 Reporting Adverse Occurrences
- 64B5-14.007 Inspection of Facilities and Demonstration of Sedation Technique
- 64B5-14.008 Requirements for General Anesthesia or Deep Sedation: Operatory, Recovery Room, Equipment, Medicinal Drugs, Emergency Protocols, Records, and Continuous Monitoring
- 64B5-14.009 Conscious Sedation Requirements: Operatory, Recovery Room, Equipment, Medicinal Drugs, Emergency Protocols, Records, and Continuous Monitoring
- 64B5-14.010 Pediatric Conscious Sedation Requirements: Operatory, Recovery Room, Equipment, Medicinal Drugs, Emergency Protocols, Records, and Continuous Monitoring

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: For Rule 64B5-14.001, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to clarify language and definitions. For Rule 64B5-14.002, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update language regarding sedation. For Rule 64B5-14.0025, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule promulgation to create a rule regarding the application for a permit for administering sedation. For Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update the requirements for issuance of permits. For Rule 64B5-14.0032,

F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment for a comprehensive review for needed updates and to update language regarding itinerate/mobile anesthesia. For Rule 64B5-14.0034, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to clarify language regarding Itinerate/Mobile Anesthesia – General Anesthesia Permit Holders. For Rule 64B5-14.0036, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to clarify language regarding the treatment of sedated patients by dentists without an anesthesia permit. For Rule 64B5-14.004, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update requirements for continuing education and to remove unnecessary or outdated language. For Rule 64B5-14.006, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update language regarding reporting adverse occurrences. For Rule 64B5-14.007, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update language regarding inspection of facilities and demonstration of sedation technique. For Rule 64B5-14.008, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update requirements for general anesthesia or deep sedation: operatory, recovery room, equipment, medicinal drugs, emergency protocols, records, and continuous monitoring. For Rule 64B5-14.009, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update requirements for moderate sedation requirements for operatory, recovery room, equipment, medicinal drugs, emergency protocols, records, and continuous monitoring. For Rule 64B5-14.010, F.A.C., the Board proposes the rule amendment to update requirements for pediatric moderate sedation requirements for operatory, recovery room, equipment, medicinal drugs, emergency protocols, records, and continuous monitoring.

SUMMARY: For Rule 64B5-14.001, F.A.C., language and definitions will be clarified. For Rule 64B5-14.002, F.A.C., language regarding sedation will be updated. For Rule 64B5-14.0025, F.A.C., a rule will be created regarding the application for a permit for administering sedation. For Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C., the requirements for issuance of permits will be updated. For Rule 64B5-14.0032, F.A.C., language regarding itinerate/mobile anesthesia will be updated. For Rule 64B5-14.0034, F.A.C., language will be clarified regarding itinerate/mobile anesthesia for general anesthesia permit holders. For Rule 64B5-14.0036, F.A.C., language will be clarified regarding the treatment of sedated patients by dentists without an anesthesia permit. For Rule 64B5-14.004, F.A.C., requirements for continuing education will be updated and unnecessary or outdated language will be removed from the rule. For Rule 64B5-14.006, F.A.C., language regarding reporting adverse occurrences will be updated. For Rule 64B5-14.007, language regarding inspection of facilities and demonstration of sedation technique will be updated. For Rule 64B5-14.008, F.A.C., requirements for general anesthesia or deep sedation will be updated. For Rule 64B5-14.009, F.A.C., requirements for moderate sedation will be updated. For Rule

64B5-14.010, F.A.C., requirements for pediatric moderate sedation will be updated.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.013(9), 456.0301, 456.031, 466.004(4), 466.0135, 466.014 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.013(9), 456.0301, 456.031, 456.033, 466.0135, 466.014, 466.017(4) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jennifer Wenhold, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B5-14.001 Definitions.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Moderate sedation – A depressed level of consciousness produced by the administration of pharmacologic substances, that retains the patient’s ability to independently and continuously maintain an airway and respond appropriately to physical stimulation and verbal command. This modality includes administration of medications via all parenteral routes, that is, intravenous, intramuscular, subcutaneous, submucosal, or inhalation, as well as enteral routes, that is oral, rectal, or transmucosal. The drugs,

and techniques used ~~shall should~~ carry a margin of safety wide enough to render unintended loss of consciousness unlikely.

(5) Pediatric Moderate Sedation – A depressed level of consciousness produced by the administration of pharmacologic substances, that retains a child patient’s ability to independently and continuously maintain an airway and respond appropriately to physical stimulation or verbal command. This modality includes administration of medication via all parenteral routes; that is intravenous, intramuscular, subcutaneous, submucosal, or inhalation, and all enteral routes; that is oral, rectal, or transmucosal. The drugs, doses, and techniques used ~~shall should~~ carry a margin of safety wide enough to render unintended loss of consciousness unlikely. For the purposes of this chapter, a pediatric patient child is defined as an individual under 18 years of age, or any person who has special needs, which means having a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities.

(6) through (8) No change.

(9) Office team approach – A methodology employed by a dentist in the administration of general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation, and pediatric sedation whereby the dentist uses two ~~one~~ or more qualified assistants/dental hygienists who, working under the direct supervision of the dentist, assist the dentist, and assist in emergency care of the patient. A dentist who is permitted by these rules to administer and employ the use of general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation, or pediatric moderate sedation shall employ the office team approach.

(10) Minimal Sedation – The perioperative use of medication to relieve anxiety before or during a dental procedure which does not produce a depressed level of consciousness and maintains the patient’s ability to maintain an airway independently and to respond appropriately to physical and verbal stimulation. This minimal sedation shall include the administration of a single enteral sedative or a single narcotic analgesic medication administered in a single dose ~~doses~~ appropriate for the unsupervised treatment of anxiety and pain. If clinically indicated, an opioid analgesic may also be administered during or following a procedure if needed for the treatment of pain. Except in extremely unusual circumstances, the cumulative dose shall not exceed the maximum recommended dose (as per the manufacturers recommendation). It is understood that even at appropriate doses a patient may occasionally drift into a state that is deeper than minimal sedation. As long as the intent was minimal sedation and all of the above guidelines were observed, this shall not automatically constitute a violation. A permit shall not be required for the perioperative use of medication for the purpose of providing minimal sedation.

(11) No change.

(12) Physician anesthesiologist – Any physician licensed pursuant to Chapter 458 or 459, F.S., who is currently board certified or board eligible by the American Board of Anesthesiology or the American Osteopathic Board of Anesthesiology, or is credentialed to administer anesthesia in a hospital or ambulatory surgical facility licensed pursuant to Chapter 395, F.S. by the Department of Health.

(13) Qualified Anesthetist: means an Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Practitioner who is licensed in this state to practice professional nursing and who is certified in the advanced or specialized nursing practice as a certified registered nurse anesthetist pursuant to Chapter 464, Part I, F.S.

(14) Certified Registered Dental Hygienist: means any Florida licensed dental hygienist who is certified by the Board and has received a certificate from the Department of Health that allows the administration of local anesthesia while the CRDH is directly ~~appropriately~~ supervised by a Florida licensed dentist.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017(3), 466.017(6) FS. Law Implemented 466.017(3), 466.017(5) FS. History—New 1-31-80, Amended 4-7-86, Formerly 21G-14.01, Amended 12-31-86, 6-1-87, 9-1-87, 2-1-93, Formerly 21G-14.001, Amended 12-20-93, Formerly 61F5-14.001, Amended 8-8-96, Formerly 59Q-14.001, Amended 3-9-03, 11-4-03, 7-3-06, 6-11-07, 8-5-12, 11-13-17, _____.

64B5-14.002 Prohibitions.

(1) Levels of Anesthesia. No dentist licensed in this state shall administer or employ the use of general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation, and pediatric moderate sedation until they have obtained a permit as required by the provision of this chapter, unless specifically authorized otherwise by this chapter. The permit requirements of this chapter do not apply when treating patients at hospitals or ambulatory surgery centers licensed pursuant to Chapter 395, F.S. General anesthesia or deep sedation. No dentists licensed in this State shall administer moderate anesthesia or deep sedation in the practice of dentistry until they have obtained a permit as required by the provisions of this rule chapter.

~~(2) Moderate sedation. No dentists licensed in this State shall administer moderate sedation in the practice of dentistry until they have obtained a permit as required by the provisions of this rule chapter.~~

~~(3) Pediatric Moderate Sedation: No dentist licensed in this State shall administer Pediatric Moderate Sedation in the practice of dentistry until such dentist has obtained a permit as required by the provisions of this rule chapter.~~

(2)(4) Nitrous-oxide inhalation analgesia. No dentists licensed in this State shall administer nitrous-oxide inhalation

analgesia in the practice of dentistry until they have complied with the provisions of this rule chapter. No agents other than nitrous-oxide and oxygen shall be used for inhalation analgesia pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C.

~~(3)(5) No change.~~

~~(6) The only agents that can be used for inhalation analgesia pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C., below are nitrous oxide and oxygen.~~

(4)(7) Titration of Oral Medication. The Board of Dentistry has determined that the perioperative titration of oral medication(s) with the intent to achieve a level of moderate sedation poses a potential overdosing threat due to the unpredictability of enteral absorption and may result in an alteration of the state of consciousness of a patient beyond the intent of the practitioner. Such potentially adverse consequences may require immediate intervention and appropriate training and equipment. ~~Beginning with the effective date of this rule, No~~ dentist licensed in this state shall use any oral medication(s) to induce moderate sedation until such dentist has obtained a permit as required by the provisions of this rule chapter. The use of enteral sedatives or narcotic analgesic medications for the purpose of providing minimal sedation as defined by and in accordance with subsection 64B5-14.001(10), F.A.C., shall not be deemed titration of oral medication and shall not be prohibited by this rule.

~~(5)(8) The following general anesthetic drugs shall not be employed on or administered to a patient by a dentist unless the dentist possesses a valid general anesthesia permit issued by the Board pursuant to the requirements of this chapter: propofol, methohexital, thiopental, etomidate, ketamine, dexmedetomidine, or volatile gases (i.e., sevoflurane, isoflurane).~~

~~(6)(9) No change.~~

(7) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to allow a dentist or dental hygienist or assistant to administer to herself or himself or to any person any drug or agent used for anesthesia, analgesia or sedation other than in the course of the practice of dentistry.

(8) A dentist utilizing general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation, or pediatric moderate sedation in the dental office may only have one patient at a time induced. A second patient shall not be induced until the first patient is awake, alert, conscious, spontaneously breathing, has stable vital signs, is under the care of a responsible adult, and that portion of the procedure requiring the participation of the dentist is complete. In an office setting where two or more permit holders are present simultaneously, each may sedate one patient provided that the office has the necessary staff and equipment for each sedated patient.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017(3), 466.017(6) FS. Law Implemented 466.017(3), 466.017(5) FS. History—New 1-31-80, Amended 4-20-81, 2-13-86, Formerly 21G-14.02, 21G-14.002, Amended 12-20-93, Formerly 61F5-14.002, Amended 8-8-96, Formerly 59Q-14.002, Amended 3-9-03, 11-4-03, 6-15-06, 12-25-06, 12-11-11, 8-5-12, 12-15-14, 7-14-16, 11-13-17, _____.

64B5-14.0025 Application for Permit.

(1) Unless authorized by this chapter, no dentist shall administer, supervise or permit another health care practitioner, as defined in Section 456.001, F.S., or perform the administration of general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation or pediatric moderate sedation in a dental office for dental patients, unless such dentist possesses a permit issued by the Board. A permit is required even when another health care practitioner, as defined in Section 456.001, F.S., administers general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation, or pediatric moderate sedation in a dental office for a dental patient. The dentist holding such a permit shall be subject to review and such permit must be renewed biennially. Each dentist in a practice who performs the administration of general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation or pediatric moderate sedation shall each possess an individual permit. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to prohibit administration of anesthetics as part of a program authorized by Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C., for training in the anesthetic being administered, or pursuant to a demonstration for inspectors pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.007, F.A.C.

(2) An applicant for any type of anesthesia permit must submit proof of:

(a) Training in the particular type of anesthesia listed in Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C.; and

(b) Documentation of actual clinical administration of anesthetics to 20 dental or oral and maxillofacial patients within two (2) years prior to application of the particular type of anesthetics for the permit applied for. However, if the applicant is applying for a pediatric moderate sedation permit and the actual clinical demonstration of anesthetics has been more than two years prior to the submission of the application, the applicant shall be entitled to licensure if the applicant has completed the American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry's comprehensive course on the Safe & Effective Sedation for the Pediatric Dental Patient within six (6) months prior to the submission of the pediatric moderate sedation permit application.

(3) Prior to the issuance of such permit, an on-site inspection of the facility, equipment, drugs and personnel shall be conducted pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.007, F.A.C., to determine if the requirements of this chapter have been met.

(4) An application for a general anesthesia permit must include the application fee specified in Rule 64B5-15.017, F.A.C., which is non-refundable; the permit fee specified in

Rule 64B5-15.018, F.A.C., which may be refunded if the application is denied without inspection of the applicant's facilities; evidence indicating compliance with all the provisions of this chapter; and identification of the location or locations at which the licensee desires to be authorized to use or employ general anesthesia or deep sedation.

(5) An application for a moderate sedation permit must include the application fee specified in Rule 64B5-15.017, F.A.C., which is non-refundable; the permit fee specified in Rule 64B5-15.018, F.A.C., which may be refunded if the application is denied without inspection of the applicant's facilities; evidence indicating compliance with all the provisions of this chapter; and identification of the location or locations at which the licensee desires to be authorized to use or employ moderate sedation.

(6) An application for a pediatric moderate sedation permit must include the application fee specified in Rule 64B5-15.017, F.A.C., which is non-refundable; the permit fee specified in Rule 64B5-15.018, F.A.C., which may be refunded if the application is denied without inspection of the applicant's facilities; evidence indicating compliance with all the provisions of this chapter; and identification of the location or locations at which the licensee desires to be authorized to use or employ pediatric moderate sedation.

(7) The Department shall renew the permit biennially upon application by the permit holder, proof of continuing education required by subsection 64B5-14.004, F.A.C., and payment of the renewal fee specified by Rule 64B5-15.019, F.A.C.

(8) The holder of any general anesthesia, moderate sedation, or pediatric moderate sedation permit is authorized to practice pursuant to such permit only at the location or locations previously reported to the Board office.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004, 466.017(3), 466.017(6) FS. Law Implemented 466.017 FS. History—New _____.

64B5-14.003 Training, Education, Certification, and Requirements for Issuance of Permits.

(1) General Anesthesia Permit.

(a) To be eligible for a A permit to authorize the use of general anesthesia or deep sedation shall be issued to an actively licensed dentist authorizing the use of general anesthesia or deep sedation at a specified practice location or locations on an outpatient basis for dental patients; provided the dentist; shall comply with Rule 64B5-14.0025, F.A.C., and:

1. Complete ~~Has completed~~ a minimum of a two year residency program accredited by the Commission on Dental Accreditation in dental anesthesiology or ~~complete has completed~~ an oral and maxillofacial surgical residency program accredited by the Commission on Dental Accreditation beyond the undergraduate dental school level, or

2. No change.

3. Is eligible for examination by the American Board of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery; ~~or~~

4. ~~Is a member of the American Association of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons.~~

(b) A dentist employing or using general anesthesia or deep sedation shall maintain a properly equipped facility for the administration of general anesthesia, pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.008, F.A.C. staffed with supervised assistant/dental hygienist personnel, capable of reasonably handling procedures, problems and emergencies incident thereto. The facility must have the equipment capability of delivering positive pressure oxygen ventilation. Administration of general anesthesia or deep sedation requires at least three individuals, each appropriately trained in accordance with this chapter: the operating dentist, a person responsible for monitoring the patient, and a person to assist the operating dentist.

(c) A dentist employing or using general anesthesia or deep sedation and all assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall be certified in an American Heart Association or American Red Cross or equivalent Agency sponsored cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level to include one person CPR, two person CPR, infant resuscitation and obstructed airway, with a periodic update not to exceed two years. ~~Starting with the licensure biennium commencing on March of 2000, A~~ a dentist and all assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall also be trained in the use of either an Automated External Defibrillator or a defibrillator and electrocardiograph as part of their cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level. In addition to CPR certification, a dentist utilizing general anesthesia or deep sedation must be currently trained in ACLS (Advanced Cardiac Life Support) ~~or~~ ATLS (Advanced Trauma Life Support). Effective March 1, 2022, If treating a patient under the age of 7, a dentist utilizing any level of sedation must be currently trained in PALS (Pediatric Advanced Life Support).

(d) A dentist permitted to administer general anesthesia or deep sedation under this rule may administer moderate sedation, pediatric moderate sedation and nitrous-oxide inhalation moderate sedation.

~~(e) A dentist employing or using deep sedation shall maintain an active and current permit to perform general anesthesia.~~

(2) Moderate Sedation Permit.

(a) ~~To be eligible for a~~ permit to authorize the ~~shall be issued to a dentist authorizing the~~ use of moderate sedation at a specified practice location or locations on an outpatient basis for dental patients, the dentist shall comply with Rule 64B5-14.0025, F.A.C., and provided such dentist:

1. Complete a ~~Has received~~ formal training course offered through a Commission on Dental Accreditation accredited dental school or program in the use of moderate sedation; or

though an accredited teaching hospital. Clinical training must take place at the accredited dental school or accredited teaching hospital; and,

2. Is certified by the institution where the formal training was received to be competent in the administration of moderate sedation; and, ~~3. is~~ is competent to handle all emergencies relating to moderate sedation.

(b) ~~The institution's~~ Such certification shall specify the type, the number of hours, the number of patients treated and the length of training. The minimum number of didactic hours shall be sixty (60), which must include four (4) hours of airway management. Airway management must include emergency airway management protocols. Clinical training shall include personal administration for at least twenty (20) patients including supervised training, clinical experience and demonstrated competence in airway management of the compromised airway. The program must certify that a total of three (3) hours of clinical training was dedicated to hands-on simulated training in emergency ~~competence~~ airway management of the compromised airway.

(c) Personal Administration of Moderate Sedation: The board shall award credit towards the required twenty (20) dental patients, if and only if, the applicant is responsible for and remains with the patient from pre-anesthetic evaluation through discharge. The evaluation and responsibilities include the following: pre-anesthetic evaluation, induction, maintenance, emergency ~~emergence~~, recovery, and approval for discharge. The board will not award credit for dental anesthetic procedures performed that are greater than or less than the administration of moderate sedation.

~~(d) This formal training program shall be offered through an accredited dental school or program; or through an accredited, teaching hospital.~~

~~(d)(e)~~ A dentist utilizing moderate sedation shall maintain a properly equipped facility for the administration of moderate sedation, pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.009, F.A.C. staffed with supervised assistant/dental hygienist personnel, capable of reasonably handling procedures, problems, and emergencies incident thereto. The facility must have the equipment capability of delivering positive pressure oxygen ventilation. Administration of moderate sedation requires at least three two individuals; each trained in accordance with this chapter: the operating a dentist, a person responsible for monitoring the patient, and a person to assist the operating dentist, and an auxiliary trained in basic cardiac life support. It shall be incumbent upon the operating dentist to ensure that the patient is appropriately monitored.

~~(e)(f)~~ A dentist utilizing moderate sedation and his assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall be certified in an American Heart Association or American Red Cross or equivalent agency sponsored cardiopulmonary resuscitation

course at the basic life support level to include one person CPR, two person CPR, infant resuscitation, and obstructed airway with a periodic update not to exceed two years. ~~Starting with the licensure biennium commencing on March of 2000, a~~ A dentist and all assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall also be trained in the use of either an Automated External Defibrillator or a defibrillator and electrocardiograph as part of their cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level. In addition to CPR certification, a dentist utilizing moderate sedation must be currently trained in ACLS (Advanced Cardiac Life Support) ~~or ATLS (Advanced Trauma Life Support)~~. Effective March 1, 2022, if treating a patient under the age of 7, a dentist utilizing moderate sedation must be currently trained in PALS (Pediatric Advanced Life Support).

~~(f)(g)~~ No change.

~~(g)(h)~~ Dentists permitted to administer moderate sedation may also administer pediatric moderate sedation in compliance with Rule 64B5-14.010, F.A.C.

(3) Pediatric Moderate Sedation Permit.

~~(a) To be eligible for a permit to authorize the use of pediatric moderate sedation at a specified practice location or locations on an outpatient basis for dental patients, the dentist shall comply with Rules 64B5-14.0025, F.A.C., and A permit shall be issued to a dentist authorizing the use of pediatric moderate sedation at a specified practice location or locations on an outpatient basis for dental patients provided such dentist:~~

1. ~~Complete~~ Has received formal training in the use of pediatric moderate sedation ~~This formal training program shall be offered through an Commission on Dental Accreditation accredited dental school or program; or through an accredited teaching hospital, or through an accredited pediatric residency program. Clinical training must take place at the accredited dental school or accredited teaching hospital program; and,~~

2. Is certified by the institution where the formal training was received to be competent in the administration of pediatric moderate sedation and is competent to handle all emergencies relating to pediatric moderate sedation. This certification shall specify the type, the number of hours, the number of patients treated and the length of training. The minimum number of didactic hours shall be sixty (60), which must include four (4) hours of airway management. Clinical training shall include personal administration for at least twenty (20) patients including supervised training, management of sedation, clinical experience and demonstrated competence in airway management of the compromised airway. The program must certify that three (3) hours of clinical training was dedicated to hands-on simulated training competence in emergency airway management of the compromised airway; and,

3. Personal Administration of Pediatric Moderate Sedation: The board shall award credit towards the required twenty (20) pediatric dental patients, if and only if, the applicant is

responsible for and remains with the patient from pre-anesthetic evaluation through discharge. The evaluation and responsibilities include the following: pre-anesthetic evaluation, induction, maintenance, emergency, recovery, and approval for discharge. The board will not award credit for dental anesthetic procedures performed that are greater than or less than the administration of pediatric moderate sedation, ~~or~~

~~4. The applicant demonstrates that the applicant graduated, within 24 months prior to application for the permit, from an accredited post doctoral pediatric residency. The pediatric residency anesthesia requirements must meet the minimum number of sedation cases as required in subsection (2).~~

~~4. 5. Is competent to handle all emergencies relating to pediatric moderate sedation.~~ A dentist utilizing pediatric moderate sedation shall maintain a properly equipped facility for the administration of pediatric moderate sedation, pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.010, F.A.C. ~~staffed with supervised assistant/dental hygienist personnel, capable of reasonably handling procedures, problems, and emergencies incidental thereto. The facility must have the equipment capability of delivering positive pressure oxygen ventilation.~~ Administration of pediatric moderate sedation requires at least three ~~two~~ individuals, each trained in accordance with this chapter: the operating a dentist, a person responsible for monitoring the patient, and a person to assist the operating dentist, and an auxiliary trained in basic cardiac life support. ~~It shall be incumbent upon the operating dentist to ensure that the patient is appropriately monitored.~~

(b) A dentist utilizing pediatric moderate sedation and his assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall be certified in an American Heart Association or American Red Cross or equivalent agency sponsored cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level to include one person CPR, two person CPR, infant resuscitation, and obstructed airway with a periodic update not to exceed two years. ~~Starting with the licensure biennium commencing on March of 2000, a~~ A dentist and all assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall also be trained in the use of either an Automated External Defibrillator or a defibrillator and electrocardiograph as part of their cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level. In addition to CPR certification, a dentist utilizing pediatric moderate sedation must be currently trained in ACLS (Advanced Cardiac Life Support), PALS (Pediatric Advanced Life Support), or a course providing similar instruction which has been approved by the Board. An entity seeking approval of such a course shall appear before the Board and demonstrate that the content of such course and the hours of instruction are substantially equivalent to those in an ACLS or PALS course.

(c) No change.

~~(d) Dentists permitted to administer moderate sedation may administer pediatric moderate sedation.~~

(4) Nitrous-Oxide Inhalation Analgesia.

(a) A dentist may employ or use nitrous-oxide inhalation analgesia on an outpatient basis for dental patients provided such dentist:

1. Has completed no less than a two-day course of training as described in the American Dental Association's "Guidelines for Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students ~~and Comprehensive Control of Pain and Anxiety in Dentistry~~" (eff. 10/16), which is hereby incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-> or available at <http://www.floridadentistry.gov>, or its equivalent, or

2. No change.

3. Has a dental nitrous-oxide delivery system ~~adequate equipment~~ with fail-safe features and a ~~30~~ 25% minimum oxygen flow.

(b) A dentist utilizing nitrous-oxide inhalation analgesia and such dentist's assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall be certified in an American Heart Association or American Red Cross or equivalent Agency sponsored cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level to include one man CPR, two man CPR, infant resuscitation and obstructed airway with a periodic update not to exceed two years. ~~Starting with the licensure biennium commencing on March of 2000, a~~ A dentist and all assistant/dental hygienist personnel shall also be trained in the use of either an Automated External Defibrillator or a defibrillator and electrocardiograph as part of their cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level. In addition to CPR certification, a dentist utilizing pediatric moderate sedation must be currently trained in ~~ACLS (Advanced Cardiac Life Support), or PALS (Pediatric Advanced Life Support).~~

(c) A dentist who regularly and routinely utilized nitrous-oxide inhalation analgesia on an outpatient basis in a competent and efficient manner for the three-year period preceding January 1, 1986, but has not had the benefit of formal training outlined in subparagraphs 1. and 2., of paragraph (4)(a), above, may continue such use provided the dentist fulfills the provisions set forth in subparagraph 3., of paragraph (4)(a), and the provisions of paragraph (b), above.

(d) Nitrous oxide may be used in combination with a single dose enteral sedative or a single dose narcotic analgesic to achieve a minimally depressed level of consciousness so long as the manufacturer's maximum recommended dosage of the enteral agent is not exceeded. Nitrous oxide may not be used in combination with more than one (1) enteral agent, or by more than a single dose. or by dosing a single enteral agent in excess of the manufacturer's maximum recommended dosage unless the administering dentist holds a moderate sedation permit

issued in accordance with subsection 64B5-14.003(2), F.A.C., or a pediatric moderate sedation permit issued in accordance with Rule 64B5-~~14.003(3)~~ 14.010, F.A.C.

(e) Dental assistants and dental hygienists may monitor nitrous-oxide inhalation analgesia under the direct supervision of a dentist if the dental assistant or dental hygienist has complied with the training requirements in Rule 64B5-14.003(4)(b) and has completed, at a minimum, a two-day course of training as described in the American Dental Association's "Guidelines for Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students" or its equivalent. After the dentist has induced a patient and established the maintenance level, the assistant or hygienist may monitor the administration of the nitrous-oxide oxygen making only diminishing adjustments during this administration and turning it off at the completion of the dental procedure.

(5) Local Anesthesia Certificate or Permit: A permit or certificate to administer local anesthesia under the direct supervision of a Florida licensed dentist to non-sedated patients eighteen (18) years of age or older shall be issued by the Department of Health to a Florida licensed dental hygienist who has completed ~~the appropriate~~ didactic and clinical education and experience as required by Section 466.017(5), F.S., and who has been certified by the Board as having met all the requirements of Section 466.017, F.S.

(a) A registered dental hygienist who is seeking a permit or certificate for administering local anesthesia must apply to the department on form DH-MQA 1261 (May 2012), Application for Dental Hygiene Certification Administration of Local Anesthesia, herein incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-01469>, or available on the Florida Board of Dentistry website at <http://www.floridasdentistry.gov> ~~http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/dentistry.~~

(b) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017(3), (6) FS. Law Implemented 466.017(3), (4), (5), (6) FS. History—New 1-31-80, Amended 4-20-81, 2-13-86, Formerly 21G-14.03, Amended 12-31-86, 11-8-90, 2-1-93, Formerly 21G-14.003, Amended 12-20-93, Formerly 61F5-14.003, Amended 8-8-96, 10-1-96, Formerly 59Q-14.003, Amended 2-17-98, 12-20-98, 5-31-00, 6-7-01, 11-4-03, 6-23-04, 6-11-07, 2-8-12, 8-16-12 (1)(a)-(f), 8-16-12 (5), 8-19-13, 12-16-13, 3-9-14, 7-14-16, 11-13-17, _____.

64B5-14.0032 Itinerate/Mobile Anesthesia – Physician Anesthesiologist.

The provisions of this rule control the treatment of dental patients in an outpatient dental office setting where a physician anesthesiologist has performed the sedation services. This rule shall control notwithstanding any rule provision in this chapter that prohibits such conduct. The level of sedation is not restricted to the level of the permit held by the treating dentist.

The level of sedation may be any level necessary for the safe and effective treatment of the patient.

(1) General Anesthesia Permit Holders:

A dentist who holds a general anesthesia permit may treat their adult, pediatric, or special needs patients when a physician anesthesiologist performs the sedation services. The following conditions shall apply:

(a) The physician anesthesiologist performs the administration of the anesthesia and the physician anesthesiologist is responsible for the anesthesia procedure;

(b) The physician anesthesiologist shall have no other patient induced with anesthesia or begin the performance of any other anesthesia services until the patient is discharged;

(c)(b) The dental treatment takes place in the general anesthesia permit holder's board inspected and board-registered dental office that is on file with the board as an authorized location to perform sedation services and that has been inspected pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.007, F.A.C.

(2) Pediatric Moderate Sedation Permit Holders:

A pediatric dentist, as recognized by the American Dental Association, who holds a pediatric Moderate sedation permit may treat their pediatric or special needs dental patients when a physician anesthesiologist performs the sedation services. The following conditions shall apply:

(a) No change.

(b) The physician anesthesiologist shall have no other patient induced with anesthesia or begin the performance of any other anesthesia services until the patient is discharged;

(c)(b) The treatment takes place in the permit holder's dental office that is on file with the board as an authorized location to perform sedation services and that has been inspected pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.007, F.A.C. board-inspected and board-registered dental office;

(d)(e) No change.

(e)(d) A board-approved inspector performs an additional inspection of the dental office and the inspector reports the office to be in full compliance with the minimum supply, equipment, and facility requirements.

~~A pediatric dentist who holds an active Moderate sedation permit and not a pediatric moderate sedation permit shall meet the sedation permit requirement of this rule until the next biennial license renewal cycle that follows the effective date of this rule. At the next biennial license renewal cycle that follows the effective date of this rule, a pediatric dentist who hold a moderate sedation permit may transfer the permit to a pediatric moderate sedation permit without any additional cost besides the renewal fee.~~

(3) Moderate Sedation Permit Holders:

A dentist who holds a moderate sedation permit may treat their adult or adult special needs dental patients when a physician

anesthesiologist performs the sedation services. The following conditions shall apply:

(a) No change.

(b) The physician anesthesiologist shall have no other patient induced with anesthesia or begin the performance of any other anesthesia series until the patient is discharged;

(c)(b) The treatment takes place in the permit holder's properly board inspected and board-registered dental office; that is on file with the board as an authorized location to perform sedation services and that has been inspected pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.007, F.A.C.

(d)(e) No change.

(e)(d) A board-approved inspector performs an additional inspection of the dental office and the inspector reports the office to be in full compliance with the minimum supply, equipment, and facility requirements.

(4) No change.

(5) Staff or Assistants:

A dentist treating a patient pursuant to this rule must have at least three (3) properly credentialed individuals present as mandated in Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C. to fulfill the mandatory minimum required personnel requirements of Rule 64B5-14.003, F.A.C., a physician anesthesiologist assistant or a certified registered nurse anesthetist in addition to, or in lieu of a dental assistant or dental hygienist may be utilized. However, the dentist must have a dedicated member of the team to assist in the dental procedure or during dental emergencies.

(6) Equipment:

A dentist may comply with the electrocardiograph equipment requirements and end-tidal carbon dioxide monitor equipment standards set by Rule 64B5-14.008, F.A.C., by utilizing the physician's mobile or non-fixed equipment if the dentist meets the following conditions:

(a) During the required board inspection, the equipment is available for inspection, or the dentist supplies an inspection of the equipment which a ~~licensed~~ health care risk manager performed. A ~~licensed~~ health care risk manager inspection is valid for a period of twelve months; and,

(b) No change.

(c) As long as the permit holder's dental office meets the supply, equipment, and facility requirements as mandated in Rule 64B5-14.008, F.A.C., nothing in this rule shall be interpreted to prevent a physician anesthesiologist from utilizing their non-fixed mobile equipment when providing anesthesia services in the permit holder's dental office.

(7) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017(3) FS. Last Implemented 466.017(3) FS. History—New 8-20-12, Amended 11-19-12, 2-21-13, 12-16-13, 11-13-17, _____.

64B5-14.0034 Itinerate/Mobile Anesthesia – General Anesthesia Permit Holders.

The provisions of this rule control the treatment of dental patients in an outpatient dental office where a dentist with a general anesthesia permit performs the sedation services for a treating dentist. The treating dentist must possess a general anesthesia permit, moderate sedation permit, or pediatric moderate sedation permit. The level of anesthesia administered shall be to any level necessary to safely and effectively treat the dental patient. This rule shall control notwithstanding any rule provision in this chapter that prohibits such conduct.

(1) No change.

(2) Moderate and Pediatric ~~M~~oderate Sedation Permit Holder’s Office:

A general anesthesia permit holder may perform sedation services for a dental patient of another dentist who holds a moderate sedation permit or a pediatric moderate sedation permit at the office of the treating dentist. In this setting, the following shall apply:

(a) through (c) No change.

(3) Equipment:

When the general anesthesia permit holder performs the anesthesia services in a dental office of a moderate or pediatric moderate sedation permit holder’s office, the electrocardiograph ~~and end tidal carbon dioxide monitor equipment~~ mandates may be met as follows:

(a) through (c) No change.

(4) through (5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017 FS. Law Implemented 466.017 FS. History–New 3-14-13, Amended 11-13-17,_____.

64B5-14.0036 Treatment of Sedated Patients by Dentists Without an Anesthesia Permit.

The provisions of this rule control the treatment of patients where an anesthesia permitted dentist sedates the dental patient in his or her ~~board inspected and board registered~~ dental office that is on file with the board as an authorized location to perform sedation services that has been inspected pursuant to 64B5-14.007, F.A.C., and a Florida licensed dentist without an anesthesia permit performs the dental treatment. This rule shall control notwithstanding any rule provision in this Chapter to the contrary, which prohibits such conduct.

(1) The permitted dentist shall perform the sedation in his or her out-patient dental office where the permitted dentist is authorized ~~registered~~ to perform the anesthesia services;

(2) through (4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017 FS. Law Implemented 466.017 FS. History–New 3-14-13, Amended 8-19-13,_____.

64B5-14.004 Continuing Education Additional Requirements.

(1) All dentists who hold an active sedation permit of any level must complete four (4) hours of continuing education in airway management and four (4) hours of continuing education in medical emergencies, every four (4) years from the last date the dentist took the continuing education course. The four (4) hours in airway management must include two hours didactic training in providing dentistry on sedated patients with compromised airways and two hours must include hands-on training in airway management of sedated patients. The continuing education must be taken through a board approved continuing education provider. The continuing education required by this subsection will take effect on March 1, 2014. The continuing education required by this subsection may be included in the thirty (30) hours required by Section 466.0135, F.S.

(2) During the licensure biennial renewal period that begins on March 1, 2020 and ever licensure biennial renewal period thereafter, all dentists who hold an active sedation permit of any level shall take the following continuing education instead of the continuing education required in subsection (1): A four (4) hour board approved continuing education course in Medical Emergencies that shall include airway management as a component of the course.

~~(1) Office Team—A dentist licensed by the Board and practicing dentistry in Florida and who is permitted by these rules to induce and administer general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation, pediatric moderate sedation or nitrous oxide inhalation analgesia may employ the office team approach.~~

~~(2) Dental Assistants, Dental Hygienists—Dental assistants and dental hygienists may monitor nitrous oxide inhalation analgesia under the direct supervision of a dentist who is permitted by rule to use general anesthesia, moderate sedation, pediatric moderate sedation, or nitrous oxide inhalation analgesia, while rendering dental services allowed by Chapter 466, F.S., and under the following conditions:~~

~~(a) Satisfactory completion of no less than a two day course of training as described in the American Dental Association’s “Guidelines for Teaching and Comprehensive Control of Pain and Anxiety in Dentistry” or its equivalent; and,~~

~~(b) Maintenance of competency in cardiopulmonary resuscitation evidenced by certification in an American Heart Association or American Red Cross or equivalent Agency sponsored cardiopulmonary resuscitation course at the basic life support level to include one man CPR, two man CPR, infant resuscitation and obstructed airway, with a periodic update not to exceed two years.~~

~~(3) After the dentist has induced a patient and established the maintenance level, the assistant or hygienist may monitor the administration of the nitrous oxide oxygen making only adjustments during this administration and turning it off at the completion of the dental procedure.~~

~~(4) Nothing in this rule shall be construed to allow a dentist or dental hygienist or assistant to administer to himself or to any person any drug or agent used for anesthesia, analgesia or sedation other than in the course of the practice of dentistry.~~

~~(5) A dentist utilizing moderate sedation in the dental office may induce only one patient at a time. A second patient shall not be induced until the first patient is awake, alert, conscious, spontaneously breathing, has stable vital signs, is ambulatory with assistance, is under the care of a responsible adult, and that portion of the procedure requiring the participation of the dentist is complete. In an office setting where two or more permit holders are present simultaneously, each may sedate one patient provided that the office has the necessary staff and equipment, as set forth in paragraph 64B5-14.003(2)(d), F.A.C., for each sedated patient.~~

~~(6) All dentists who hold an active sedation permit of any level must complete four (4) hours of continuing education in airway management and four (4) hours of continuing education in medical emergencies, every four (4) years from the last date the dentist took the continuing education course. The four (4) hours in airway management must include two hours didactic training in providing dentistry on sedated patients with compromised airways and two hours must include hands on training in airway management of sedated patients. The continuing education must be taken through a board approved continuing education provider. The continuing education required by this subsection will take effect on March 1, 2014. The continuing education required by this subsection may be included in the thirty (30) hours required by Section 466.0135, F.S.~~

~~Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017(3) FS. Law Implemented 466.017(3) FS. History—New 1-31-80, Amended 2-13-86, Formerly 21G-14.04, Amended 12-31-86, 12-28-92, Formerly 21G-14.004, Amended 12-20-93, Formerly 61F5-14.004, Amended 8-8-96, Formerly 59Q-14.004, Amended 11-4-03, 6-23-04, 5-24-05, 8-19-13, 11-13-17, _____.~~

64B5-14.006 Reporting Adverse Occurrences.

(1) No change.

(2) Dentists: Any dentist practicing in the State of Florida must notify the Board in writing by registered mail within forty-eight hours (48 hrs.) of any mortality or other adverse occurrence that occurs in the dentist's outpatient facility. A complete written report shall be filed with the Board within thirty (30) days of the mortality or other adverse occurrence. The complete written report shall, at a minimum, include the following:

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) A detailed description of the adverse occurrence, to include 1) the onset and type of complications and the onset and type of symptoms experienced by the patient; 2) the onset and type of treatment rendered to the patient; and, 3) the onset and type of response of the patient to the treatment rendered, 4) final disposition of the patient; and,

(g) No change.

(3) through (7) No change.

(8) When a patient death or other adverse occurrence as described in subsection 64B5-14.006(1), F.A.C., is reported to the Department pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.006, F.A.C., the initial report shall be transmitted to the Chairman of the Board's Probable Cause Panel or another designated member of the Probable Cause Panel to determine if there is legal sufficiency that there has been a violation of the practice act. If so, the Adverse Incident Report shall be referred to the Department of Health, Consumer Services Unit.

~~Rulemaking Authority 466.004(4), 466.017(3), (6) FS. Law Implemented 466.017(3), (5) FS. History—New 2-12-86, Amended 3-27-90, Formerly 21G-14.006, Amended 12-20-93, Formerly 61F5-14.006, Amended 8-8-96, Formerly 59Q-14.006, Amended 11-4-03, 12-25-06, 8-5-12, 11-13-17, _____.~~

64B5-14.007 Inspection of Facilities and Demonstration of Sedation Technique.

(1) ~~The Department, in consult with the Anesthesia Chair Chairman of the Board or the Board by majority vote shall appoint consultants who are Florida licensed dentists who hold an active general anesthesia permit, moderate sedation permit, or a pediatric moderate sedation permit to inspect facilities where general anesthesia, deep sedation, moderate sedation, or pediatric moderate sedation is performed. Consultants shall receive instruction in inspection procedures from the Board prior to initiating an inspection.~~

(2) Prior to issuance of a general anesthesia permit, moderate sedation permit, or pediatric moderate sedation permit, the applicant shall pass an initial inspection. The initial inspection shall require the applicant to show compliance with Rule 64B5-14.008, 64B5-14.009 or 64B5-14.010, F.A.C., as applicable and must demonstrate that he or she has knowledge of the use of the required equipment and drugs as follows:

(a) Demonstration of General Anesthesia/Deep Sedation. A dental procedure utilizing general anesthesia/deep sedation must be observed and evaluated. Any general anesthesia/deep sedation technique that is routinely employed may be demonstrated. Demonstration must include placement of intravenous catheter. The patient shall be monitored while sedated and during recovery. Furthermore, the dentist and his or her team must physically demonstrate by simulation an ~~appropriate~~ response to the following emergencies that express full knowledge and treatment of the patient:

- 1. through 8. No change.
- 9. Allergic reaction/Anaphylactic reaction,
- 10. through 12. No change.
- 13. Respiratory depression/Apnea.

(b) Demonstration of Moderate Sedation. A dental procedure utilizing moderate sedation must be observed and evaluated. Any moderate sedation technique that is routinely employed may be demonstrated. Demonstration must include placement of intravenous catheter. The patient shall be monitored while sedated and during recovery. Furthermore, the dentist and his or her team must physically demonstrate by simulation an ~~an appropriate~~ response to the following emergencies that express full knowledge and treatment of the patient:

- 1. through 8. No change.
- 9. Allergic reaction/Anaphylactic reaction,
- 10. through 12. No change.
- 13. Respiratory depression/Apnea.

(c) Demonstration of Pediatric Moderate Sedation. A dental procedure utilizing pediatric moderate sedation must be observed and evaluated. Any pediatric moderate sedation technique that is routinely employed may be demonstrated. The patient shall be monitored while sedated and during recovery. Furthermore, the dentist and his or her team must physically demonstrate by simulation an ~~an appropriate~~ response to the following emergencies that express full knowledge and treatment of the patient:

- 1. through 8. No change.
- 9. Allergic reaction/Anaphylactic reaction,
- 10. through 12. No change.
- 13. Respiratory depression/Apnea.

(3) Any applicant who fails to comply with any of the above requirements as a result of the initial inspection shall receive a failing grade and shall be denied a permit for general anesthesia, moderate sedation or pediatric moderate sedation.

~~(4)(3)~~ Any dentist who has ~~applied for or received~~ a general anesthesia permit, moderate sedation permit, or pediatric moderate sedation permit shall be subject to announced or unannounced ~~routine onsite~~ inspection and evaluation by an inspection consultant. Routine inspections shall be conducted, at a minimum of, every three years. The routine inspection shall include: This inspection and evaluation shall be required prior to issuance of an anesthesia permit. However, if the Department cannot complete the required inspection prior to licensure, such inspection shall be waived until such time that it can be completed following licensure.

(a) Compliance with the requirements of Rule 64B5-14.008, 64B5-14.009 or 64B5-14.010, F.A.C., as applicable, by assigning a grade of pass or fail.

(4) The inspection consultant shall determine compliance with the requirements of Rules 64B5-14.008, 64B5-14.009 and

~~64B5-14.010, F.A.C., as applicable, by assigning a grade of pass or fail.~~

~~(5) Any applicant who receives a failing grade as a result of the on site inspection shall be denied a permit for general anesthesia, moderate sedation and pediatric moderate sedation.~~

~~(b)(6)~~ Any permit holder who fails the inspection shall be so notified by the anesthesia inspection consultant and shall be given a written statement at the time of inspection which specifies the deficiencies which resulted in a failing grade. The ~~consultant inspection team~~ shall give the permit holder 20 days from the date of inspection to correct any documented deficiencies. Upon notification by the permit holder to the inspection consultant that the deficiencies have been corrected, the inspector shall reinspect or accept a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) to ensure that the deficiencies have been corrected. If the deficiencies have been corrected, a passing grade shall be assigned. No permit holder who has received a failing grade shall be permitted 20 days to correct deficiencies unless he voluntarily agrees in writing that no general anesthesia or deep sedation or moderate sedation will be performed until such deficiencies have been corrected and such corrections are verified by the anesthesia inspection consultant and a passing grade has been assigned.

~~(c)(7)~~ Upon a determination of the ~~inspection~~ consultant that a permit holder has received a failing grade and that the permit holder has not chosen to exercise his option by taking ~~immediate~~ remedial action within the 20 day time period and submitting to reinspection, or reinspection has established that remedial action has not been accomplished, the ~~Inspection~~ Consultant shall refer the permit holder to the Department of Health, Consumer Services Unit ~~determine whether the deficiencies constitute an imminent danger to the public. Should an imminent danger exist, the consultant shall report his findings to the Executive Director of the Board. The Executive Director shall immediately request an emergency meeting of the Probable Cause Panel. The Probable Cause Panel shall determine whether an imminent danger exists and upon this determination of imminent danger request the Secretary of the Department to enter an emergency suspension of the anesthesia permit. If no imminent danger exists, the consultant shall report his findings to the Probable Cause Panel for further action against the permit holder. Nothing herein is intended to affect the authority of the Secretary of the Department to exercise his emergency suspension authority independent of the Board or the Probable Cause Panel.~~

~~(8) When a patient death or other adverse occurrence as described in subsection 64B5-14.006(1), F.A.C., is reported to the Department pursuant to Rule 64B5-14.006, F.A.C., the initial report shall be faxed or otherwise telephonically transmitted to the Chairman of the Board's Probable Cause Panel or another designated member of the Probable Cause~~

~~Panel to determine if an emergency suspension order is necessary. If so, the Department shall be requested to promptly conduct an investigation which shall include an inspection of the office involved in the patient death.~~

~~(a) If the results of the investigation substantiate the previous determination, an emergency suspension order shall be drafted and presented to the Secretary of the Department for consideration and execution. Thereafter, a conference call meeting of the Probable Cause Panel shall be held to determine the necessity of further administrative action.~~

~~(b) If the determination is made that an emergency does not exist, the office involved with the patient death shall be inspected as soon as practicable following receipt of the notice required by Rule 64B5-14.006, F.A.C. However, in the event that the office has previously been inspected with a passing result, upon review of the inspection results, the Chairman of the Probable Cause Panel or other designated member of the Probable Cause Panel shall determine whether or not a reinspection is necessary. The complete written report of the adverse occurrence as required in Rule 64B5-14.006, F.A.C., shall be provided to the Probable Cause Panel of the Board to determine if further action is appropriate.~~

~~(c) If a routine inspection reveals a failure to comply with Rule 64B5-14.006, F.A.C., the Inspection Consultant shall obtain the information which was required to be reported and shall determine whether the failure to report the death or incident reveals that an imminent danger to the public exists and report to the Executive Director or Probable Cause Panel as set forth in subsection 64B5-14.007(7), F.A.C.~~

~~(5)(9) The holder of any general anesthesia, moderate sedation, or pediatric moderate sedation permit shall inform the Board office in writing of any change in authorized locations for the use of such permits prior to accomplishing such changes. Written notice shall be required prior to the addition of any location or the closure of any previously identified location. Any additional location shall be subject to a routine inspection no later than one year from the date of the added location.~~

~~(6)(10) Failure to provide access to an inspection consultant team on two successive occasions shall be grounds for discipline for failure to comply with a legal obligation. ~~the issuance of an emergency suspension of the licensee's permit pursuant to the provisions of Section 120.60(6), F.S.~~~~

Rulemaking Authority 466.017(3) FS. Law Implemented 120.60(8), 466.017(3) FS. History—New 10-24-88, Amended 3-27-90, 11-8-90, 4-24-91, 2-1-93, Formerly 21G-14.007, Amended 12-20-93, Formerly 61F5-14.007, Amended 8-8-96, Formerly 59Q-14.007, Amended 11-4-03, 6-11-07, 11-13-17, _____.

64B5-14.008 Requirements for General Anesthesia or Deep Sedation: Operatory, Recovery Room, Equipment, Medicinal Drugs, Emergency Protocols, Records, and Continuous Monitoring.

General Anesthesia Permit applicants and permit holders shall comply with the following requirements at each location where anesthesia procedures are performed. The requirements shall be met and equipment permanently maintained and available at each location.

(1) Operatory: The operatory where anesthesia is to be administered must:

(a) Be of adequate size and design to accommodate the patient on a table or in an operating chair and permit an operating team consisting of at least three individuals to freely move about the patient. An operating table or chair which permits the patient to be positioned so the operating team can maintain the airway, quickly alter patient position in an emergency, and provide a firm platform for the management of CPR permit physical access of emergency equipment and personnel and to permit effective emergency management;

(b) through (c) No change.

(2) through (4) No change.

(5) Medicinal Drugs: The following drugs or type of drugs with a current shelf life must be maintained and easily accessible from the operatory and recovery room and must be maintained in sufficient amounts to address medical emergencies:

(a) through (m) No change.

(n) A paralytic agent that is appropriate for the breakage of a laryngospasm or for the use of rapid sequence intubation A muscle relaxant (e.g., Succinylcholine);

(o) through (p) No change.

(q) Dantrolene or ryanodex, if volatile gases are used.

(6) Emergency Protocols: The applicant or permit holder shall provide written emergency protocols, and shall annually provide training to familiarize office personnel in the treatment of the following clinical emergencies:

(a) through (p) No change.

The applicant or permit holder shall maintain for inspection a permanent record, which reflects the date, time, duration, and type of training provided to named personnel annually.

(7) Records: The following records are required when general anesthesia or deep sedation is administered:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) An anesthesia record which shall include:

1. through 2. No change.

3. Duration of the procedure, including the start and finish time of the procedure;

4. through 6. No change.

(8) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004, 466.017 FS. Law Implemented 466.017 FS. History—New 10-24-88, Amended 11-16-89, Formerly 21G-14.008, Amended 12-20-93, Formerly 61F5-14.008, Amended 8-8-96, Formerly 59Q-14.008, Amended 5-31-00, 6-23-04, 9-14-05, 3-23-06, 10-24-11, 3-9-14, _____.

64B5-14.009 Moderate Sedation Requirements: Operatory, Recovery Room, Equipment, Medicinal Drugs, Emergency Protocols, Records, and Continuous Monitoring. Moderate Sedation Permit applicants and permit holders shall comply with the following requirements at each location where anesthesia procedures are performed. The requirements shall be met and equipment permanently maintained and available at each location.

(1) Operatory: The operatory where anesthesia is to be administered must:

(a) Be of size and design to accommodate the patient on a table or in an operating chair and permit an operating team consisting of at least three individuals to freely move about the patient. An operating table or chair which permits the patient to be positioned so the operating team can maintain the airway, quickly alter patient position in an emergency, and provide a firm platform for the management of CPR. Be of adequate size and design to permit physical access of emergency equipment and personnel and to permit effective emergency management;

(b) through (c) No change.

(2) through (4) No change.

(5) Medicinal Drugs: The following drugs or type of drugs with a current shelf life must be maintained and easily accessible from the operatory and recovery room and must be maintained in sufficient amounts to address medical emergencies:

(a) through (m) No change.

(n) A paralytic agent that is appropriate for the breakage of a laryngospasm or for the use of rapid sequence intubation. A muscle relaxant (e.g., Succinylcholine);

(o) through (p) No change.

(6) Emergency Protocols: The applicant or permit holder shall provide written emergency protocols, and shall annually provide training to familiarize office personnel in the treatment of the following clinical emergencies:

(a) through (p) No change.

The applicant or permit holder shall maintain for inspection a permanent record, which reflects the date, time, duration, and type of training provided to named personnel annually.

(7) Records: The following records are required when moderate sedation is administered:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) A sedation or anesthesia record which shall include:

1. through 2. No change.

3. Duration of the procedure including the start and the finish times of the procedure;

4. through 6. No change.

(8) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004, 466.017 FS. Law Implemented 466.017 FS. History—New 10-24-88, Amended 11-16-89, 4-24-91, Formerly 21G-14.009, 61F5-14.009, Amended 8-8-96, 10-1-96, Formerly 59Q-14.009, Amended 8-2-00, 11-4-03, 6-23-04, 3-23-06, 10-26-11, 3-9-14, 4-17-16, 11-13-17, _____.

64B5-14.010 Pediatric Moderate Sedation Requirements: Operatory; Recovery Room, Equipment, Medicinal Drugs, Emergency Protocols, Records, and Continuous Monitoring. Pediatric Moderate Sedation Permit applicants and permit holders shall comply with the following requirements at each location where anesthesia procedures are performed. The requirements shall be met and equipment permanently maintained and available at each location.

(1) Operatory: The operatory where the sedated child patient is to be treated must:

(a) Be of size and design to accommodate the patient on a table or in an operating chair and permit an operating team consisting of at least three individuals to freely move about the patient. An operating table or chair which permits the patient to be positioned so the operating team can maintain the airway, quickly alter patient position in an emergency, and provide a firm platform for the management of CPR. Be of adequate size and design to permit physical access of emergency equipment and personnel and to permit effective emergency management;

(b) through (c) No change.

(2) through (4) No change.

(5) Medicinal Drugs: The following drugs or type of drugs with a current shelf life must be maintained and easily accessible from the operatory and recovery room and must be maintained in sufficient amounts to address medical emergencies:

(a) through (m) No change.

(n) A paralytic agent that is appropriate for the breakage of a laryngospasm or for the use of rapid sequence intubation. A muscle relaxant (e.g., Succinylcholine);

(o) through (p) No change.

(6) Emergency Protocols: The applicant or permit holder shall provide written emergency protocols, and shall annually provide training to familiarize office personnel in the treatment of the following clinical emergencies:

(a) through (p) No change.

The applicant or permit holder shall maintain for inspection a permanent record, which reflects the date, time, duration, and type of training provided to named personnel annually.

(7) Records: The following records are required when pediatric moderate sedation is administered:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) An anesthesia or sedation record which shall include:

- 1. through 2. No change.
- 3. Duration of the procedure, including the start and finish times of the procedure;
- 4. through 6. No change.
- (8) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 466.004, 466.017 FS. Law Implemented 466.017 FS. History—New 8-8-96, Formerly 59Q-14.010, Amended 8-2-00, 5-20-01, 3-23-06, 10-26-11, 3-9-14, 4-17-16, 11-13-17,

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Dentistry
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Dentistry
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 23, 2019
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 7, 2019

Section III
Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE NO.: 6A-4.0181
RULE TITLE: Specialization Requirements for Certification in Guidance and Counseling (Grades PK-12) - Specialty Class Beginning July 1, 1990
NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 45 No. 150, August 2, 2019 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

Based on public comment the rule has been amended as follows:

6A-4.0181 Specialization Requirements for Certification in Guidance and Counseling (Grades PK-12) - Specialty Class Beginning July 1, 1990

- (1) No change.
- (2) Plan Two. A master’s or higher degree with a graduate major in counseling other than guidance and counseling or school counseling as specified in subsection (1) of this rule that includes a minimum of six-hundred (600) clock hours of supervised internship with school-aged children and their families ~~in a setting other than a prekindergarten, an elementary or a secondary school~~ with at least nine (9) semester hours of graduate credit to include the following areas:

- (a) through (d) No change.
- (3) No change.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Miscellaneous Tax

RULE NO.: 12B-4.013
RULE TITLE: Conveyances Subject to Tax
NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 45 No. 187, September 25, 2019 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

The following rule title was inadvertently omitted from the body of the rule text:

12B-4.013 Conveyances Subject to Tax

Section IV
Emergency Rules

NONE

Section V
Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission

RULE NO.: 11B-35.0011
RULE TITLE: Basic Abilities Test Requirements for Applicant Admission into a Law Enforcement and Correctional Basic Recruit Training Program

The Department of Law Enforcement hereby gives notice: that on June 24, 2019, the Department of Law Enforcement, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-35.0011(1), F.A.C. from Christian Garcia. The Petitioner wishes to permanently waive that portion of the rule that states: To comply with paragraph 943.17(1)(g), F.S., applicants who apply for entry into a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program after January 1, 2002, shall obtain a passing score on a Commission-approved Basic Abilities Test (BAT) for the law enforcement or correctional disciplines, prior to entering a program. Notice of the petition was published in the Florida Administrative Register on 6-27-19 at 45/125. The Petition for Permanent Waiver was GRANTED on August 8, 2019. Petitioner met the standard for obtaining the waiver.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Dana Kelly, Agency Clerk, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by Telephone at (850)410-7676.

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT
 Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission
 RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 11B-35.0011 Basic Abilities Test Requirements for Applicant Admission into a Law Enforcement and Correctional Basic Recruit Training Program
 The Department of Law Enforcement hereby gives notice: that on June 24, 2019, the Department of Law Enforcement, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-35.0011(1), F.A.C. from Louie Fajardo. The Petitioner wishes to permanently waive that portion of the rule that states: To comply with paragraph 943.17(1)(g), F.S., applicants who apply for entry into a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program after January 1, 2002, shall obtain a passing score on a Commission-approved Basic Abilities Test (BAT) for the law enforcement or correctional disciplines, prior to entering a program. Notice of the petition was published in the Florida Administrative Register on 6-14-19 at 45/125. The Petition for Permanent Waiver was GRANTED on August 8, 2019. Petitioner met the standard for obtaining the waiver.
 A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Dana Kelly, Agency Clerk, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by Telephone at (850)410-7676.

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT
 Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission
 RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 11B-35.0011 Basic Abilities Test Requirements for Applicant Admission into a Law Enforcement and Correctional Basic Recruit Training Program
 The Department of Law Enforcement hereby gives notice: that on June 24, 2019, the Department of Law Enforcement, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-35.0011(1), F.A.C. from David Diaz. The Petitioner wishes to permanently waive that portion of the rule that states: To comply with paragraph 943.17(1)(g), F.S., applicants who apply for entry into a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program after January 1, 2002, shall obtain a passing score on a Commission-approved Basic Abilities Test (BAT) for the law enforcement or correctional disciplines, prior to entering a program. Notice of the petition was published in the Florida Administrative Register on 6-27-19 at 45/125. The Petition for Permanent Waiver was GRANTED on August 8, 2019. Petitioner met the standard for obtaining the waiver.
 A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Dana Kelly, Agency Clerk, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by Telephone at (850)410-7676.

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT
 Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission
 RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 11B-35.0011 Basic Abilities Test Requirements for Applicant Admission into a Law Enforcement and Correctional Basic Recruit Training Program
 The Department of Law Enforcement hereby gives notice: that on June 24, 2019, the Department of Law Enforcement, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-35.0011(1), F.A.C. from Eric Cos. The Petitioner wishes to permanently waive that portion of the rule that states: To comply with paragraph 943.17(1)(g), F.S., applicants who apply for entry into a Commission-approved Basic Recruit Training Program after January 1, 2002, shall obtain a passing score on a Commission-approved Basic Abilities Test (BAT) for the law enforcement or correctional disciplines, prior to entering a program. Notice of the petition was published in the Florida Administrative Register on 6-27-19 at 45/125. The Petition for Permanent Waiver was GRANTED on August 8, 2019. Petitioner met the standard for obtaining the waiver.
 A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Dana Kelly, Agency Clerk, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by Telephone at (850)410-7676.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION
 Health Facility and Agency Licensing
 RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 18, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from Pinellas Point Nursing and Rehab Center to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019016297. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.
 A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION
 Health Facility and Agency Licensing
 RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
 59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 17, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from Courtenay Springs Village to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019016293. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION
Health Facility and Agency Licensing

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 18, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from Fort Walton Rehabilitation Center to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019016295. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION
Health Facility and Agency Licensing

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

59A-4.1265 Emergency Environmental Control for Nursing Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 18, 2019, the Agency for Health Care Administration, received a petition for variance from subsection 59A-4.1265(5), F.A.C., from MacClenny Nursing and Rehab Center to implement the Detailed Nursing Home Emergency Power Plan. The petition was assigned case number 2019016294. Any interested person or other agency may submit written comments on the petition within 14 days after this notice by e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jacqueline Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308 or e-mailing LTCstaff@ahca.myflorida.com.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-4.010 Sanitation and Safety Requirements

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 23, 2019, the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, received a petition for an Emergency Variance for subsection 61C-4.010(7) Florida Administrative Code and subsection 61C-4.010(6), Florida Administrative Code from 904 CATERING LLC located In Jacksonville. The above referenced F.A.C. addresses the requirement that at least one accessible bathroom be provided for use by customers. They are requesting to share the bathrooms located within a nearby establishment under a different ownership for use by customers only.

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 5 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received before 5:00 p.m.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Kasimira.Kelly@myfloridalicense.com, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1011.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-1.004 General Sanitation and Safety Requirements

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 23, 2019, the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, received a petition for an Emergency Variance for paragraph 61C-1.004(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code and Paragraph 5-202.11(A), 2009 FDA Food Code from Pop Orlando 2 LLC located in Orlando. The above referenced F.A.C. addresses the requirement that each establishment have an approved plumbing system installed to transport potable water and wastewater. They are requesting to utilize holding tanks to provide potable water and to collect wastewater at the handwash sinks and 3-compartment sink.

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 5 days from the date of publication

of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received before 5:00 p.m.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Kasimira.Kelly@myfloridalicense.com, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1011.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-5.001 Safety Standards

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 18, 2019, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for Homewood Suites by Hilton Brandon at 10240 Palm River Rd, Tampa, FL. Petitioner seeks an emergency variance of the requirements of ASME A17.1b, Section 212.1, as adopted by Rule 61C-5.001, Florida Administrative Code that requires wire rope suspension means which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 5 days of the publication of this notice with Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW 2019-179).

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013, dhr.elevators@myfloridalicense.com.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-5.001 Safety Standards

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice: On October 23, 2019 the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for a temporary Variance from Lake Worth Towers, filed September 24, 2019, and advertised on October 1, 2019 in Vol. 45, No.191, of the Florida Administrative Register. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 2.7.4 and 3.11.3, ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Rule 61C-5.001 Florida Administrative Code that requires upgrading the elevator fire fighters service because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the underlying statute has been met and that Petitioner would suffer a

substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2019-170).

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013. dhr.elevators@myfloridalicense.com.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Finance

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 21, 2019, the Florida Office of Financial Regulation, received a petition for Waiver of paragraph 69V-560.703(1)(a) from InComm Financial Services, Inc. The petition seeks a Waiver of paragraph 69V-560.703(1)(a) which requires (1) A money transmitter shall maintain records of the following information for all inbound and outbound transmissions, which must be obtained for each money transmission, regardless of the amount: (a) The name and address of the sender.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Office of Financial Regulation, P.O. Box 8050, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050, (850)410-9889, Agency.Clerk@flofr.com.

Section VI

Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

Division of Victim Services and Criminal Justice Programs

The Council on the Social Status of Black Men and Boys announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, November 15, 2019, 3:30 p.m. – 4:30 p.m.

PLACE: Toll Free Dial in Number: 1(888)585-9008, Conference Code: 428-345-081

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Council shall make a systematic study of the conditions affecting black men and boys, including, but not limited to, homicide rates, arrest and incarceration rate, poverty, violence, drug abuse, death rates, disparate annual income levels, school performance in all grade levels including postsecondary levels, and health issues.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <http://www.cssbmb.com>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by

contacting: the Bureau of Criminal Justice Programs at (850)414-3300. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: the Bureau of Criminal Justice Programs at (850)414-3300.

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

The Florida Department of Law Enforcement announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 31, 2019, 8:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: *Reminder: To avoid disruption, please mute your phone line once you dial in.*

Call in number: Phone: (727)582-2255, Participant PIN: 092954

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The above meeting is held to convene members of the Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety Commission.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: A copy of the Commission meeting agenda will be posted when available on the following website: <http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/MSDHS/Meetings>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Office of Policy Development and Planning, Jennifer Miller at (850)410-8321 or e-mail at JenniferMiller2@fdle.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

Northeast Florida Regional Planning Council

The Northeast Florida Regional Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 7, 2019, 9:30 a.m., Executive Committee Meeting

PLACE: 100 Festival Park Avenue, Jacksonville, FL 32202

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: (904)279-0880.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Northwest Florida Water Management District

The Northwest Florida Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 12, 2019, 2:30 p.m. ET

PLACE: District Headquarters, 81 Water Management Drive, Havana, FL 32333.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In accordance with the timeframe set forth in section 120.525, Florida Statutes, a public opening is hereby noticed within the timeline for Invitation to Bid (ITB) 20B-001 - 2020 HAND PLANTING SERVICES FOR REFORESTATION.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Tyler Macmillan, (850)539-5999, Tyler.macmillan@nwfwater.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 72 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Division of Administration, (850)539-5999. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Tyler Macmillan, (850)539-5999, Tyler.macmillan@nwfwater.com.

DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS

Division of Volunteer and Community Services

The DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS, DIVISION OF VOLUNTEER AND COMMUNITY SERVICES announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 1, 2019, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Conference Call Line: 1(888)585-9008 Participant ID# 600513360

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In accordance with 430.501, Florida Statutes, the Alzheimer’s Disease Advisory Subcommittee will be holding a conference call in order to fulfill its duties in advising the Department of Elder Affairs in the performance of its duties under this act regarding legislative, programmatic, and administrative matters that relate to those living with Alzheimer’s disease and their caretakers.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Tracey Aittama, Department of Elder Affairs, aittamat@elderaffairs.org, (850)414-2343.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Tracey Aittama, Department of Elder Affairs, aittamat@elderaffairs.org, (850)414-2343. If you are hearing or

speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Tracey Aittama, Department of Elder Affairs, aittamat@elderaffairs.org, (850)414-2343.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Commission on Human Relations

The Florida Commission on Human Relations announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 11:00 a.m. ET

PLACE: Call 1(888)585-9008, and when prompted enter conference room number 772425480, followed by the # key.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the meeting is for the Commission to vote on the disposition of cases pending before it for decision.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Stanley Gorsica at (850)907-6809 or Stanley.Gorsica@fchr.myflorida.com.

The FCHR office at 4075 Esplanade Way, Room 110, Tallahassee, FL 32399, will serve as an access point for this meeting. Interested persons wishing to attend this meeting may also do so by appearing in person at this designated access point, at which location telephonic access to the meeting will be provided.

For more information, you may contact: Stanley Gorsica at (850)907-6809 or Stanley.Gorsica@fchr.myflorida.com.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61A-1.01010 Expendable Retailer Advertising Specialties Exception

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco, announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 1:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m., or until hearing adjourns. The record will be open for receipt of written comments through 5:00 p.m. on Friday, November 15, 2019.

PLACE: 2601 Blair Stone Road, Building C, Room 409, Tallahassee, FL 32399

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Public input regarding proposed language for Rule 61A-1.01010, F.A.C., as contained in the Notice of Change, published in Volume 45, Issue 192 of the Florida Administrative Register on October 2, 2019.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rebecca Hays, Counsel for Compliance and Regulatory Programs, at (850)717-1314 or Rebecca.Hays@myfloridalicense.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rebecca Hays, Counsel for Compliance and Regulatory Programs, at (850)717-1314 or Rebecca.Hays@myfloridalicense.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Rebecca Hays, Counsel for Compliance and Regulatory Programs, at (850)717-1314 or Rebecca.Hays@myfloridalicense.com.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Building Code Administrators and Inspectors Board

The Building Code Administrators and Inspectors Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: December 11, 2019, 9:00 a.m.; December 12, 2019, 9:00 a.m.; December 13, 2019, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Mission Inn Resort & Club, 10400 County Road 48, Howey-In-The-Hills, Florida 34737, the telephone number is (352)324-3101

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Committee meetings, probable cause panel (portions of which may be closed to the public), general board business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Myfloridalicense.com - Businesses & Professions - Building Code Administrators & Inspectors - Board Meeting Information.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Building Code Administrators and Inspectors Board, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee FL 32399, or by calling (850)717-1980. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Building Code Administrators and Inspectors Board, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee FL 32399, or by calling (850)717-1980.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Pharmacy

The Florida Board of Pharmacy announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: August 25, 2020, 8:00 a.m.; August 26, 2020, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Embassy Suites Tampa – USF, 3705 Spectrum Blvd, Tampa, FL 33612, 1(813)977-7066.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This notice will replace notice # 22284894. General board business and disciplinary matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: www.floridaspharmacy.gov.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (850)245-4474. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: (850)245-4474.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Pharmacy

The Florida Board of Pharmacy announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: December 10, 2020, 8:00 a.m., December 11, 2020, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Crowne Plaza Ft. Myers, Bell Tower, 13051 Bell Tower Drive, Ft. Myers, FL 33907, (239)482-2900.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This notice will replace notice # 22285185. General board business and disciplinary matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: www.floridaspharmacy.gov.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (850)245-4474. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay

Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: (850)245-4474.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

RULE NO.: **RULE TITLE:**

65-2.048 Action to Reduce or Discontinue Assistance or Service

The Department of Children and Families announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 14, 2019, 2:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: (1) Department of Children and Families, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 2, Office of the General Counsel, Large Conference Room, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0700

(2) Conference call number: 1(888)585-9008, Participant code: 610-053-224

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Rule 65-2.048, the Action to Reduce or Discontinue Assistance or Service rule.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jodi Abramowitz at (850)717-4470 or Jodi.abramowitz@myflfamilies.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Refugee Services

The Jacksonville Area Refugee Task Force announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 13, 2019, 1:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: Jacksonville Baptist Association, 2700 University Boulevard South, Jacksonville, FL 32216

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the Jacksonville Area Refugee Task Force meeting is to increase awareness of the refugee populations, share best practices, spot trends in refugee populations, build collaborations between agencies, help create good communication among service providers, get informed about upcoming community events, and discuss refugee program service needs and possible solutions to meeting those needs.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: LeAndra Stafford at (904)485-9540 or David Draper at (407)317-7335.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: LeAndra Stafford at (904)485-9540 or David Draper at (407)317-7335.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

OIR – Insurance Regulation

RULE NOS.:RULE TITLES:

69O-193.001 Purpose and Scope

69O-193.002 Definitions

69O-193.003 Applications

69O-193.005 Required Financial Reports

69O-193.006 Financial Viability

69O-193.007 Manager or Management Company

69O-193.010 Place

69O-193.012 Phases

69O-193.015 Expansion of a Facility

69O-193.023 Escrow Agreements and Amendments

69O-193.028 Feasibility Studies

69O-193.030 Updated Feasibility Study

69O-193.035 Certificate of Occupancy

69O-193.040 Advertisement Enforcement Procedures

69O-193.045 Administrative Supervision Proceedings

69O-193.048 Letters of Credit

69O-193.050 Calculation of the Minimum Liquid Reserve Requirement

69O-193.053 Waiver of Minimum Liquid Reserves

69O-193.055 Accreditation

69O-193.058 Continuous Updates

69O-193.060 Background Information

69O-193.065 Forms Incorporated by Reference

69O-193.066 Corrective Action Plan

The Office of Insurance Regulation announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: 116 Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida. To join by telephone, call (850)413-1558 and enter conference ID# 500816.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Chapter 2019-160, Laws of Florida, amended and created new sections in Chapter 651, F.S. The Office is amending Chapter 69O-193 to comply with these statutory changes, as well as amending and repealing existing rules.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel, Michael.LawrenceJr@flor.com, (850)413-4112.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel, Michael.LawrenceJr@flor.com, (850)413-4112. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Michael Lawrence, Jr., Assistant General Counsel, Michael.LawrenceJr@flor.com, (850)413-4112.

SOUTH DADE SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

The South Dade Soil & Water Conservation District announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday October 24, 2019, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: USDA Florida City Service Center, 1450 N. Krome Ave #102, Florida City, FL 33034

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Agenda Items for presentation to the Board of Supervisors, Ag Lab Report, MIL Report and District Updates. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Wendy Canty, (305)242-1288.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: SDSWCD (305)242-1288. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

FLORIDA IS FOR VETERANS INC.

The Florida is for Veterans, Inc., dba Veterans Florida announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 6, 2019, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Four Points by Sheraton, 316 W Tennessee St., Tallahassee, FL 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Board of Directors Meeting with department updates, committee assignments and committee meeting updates.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: admin@veteransflorida.org.

For more information, you may contact: admin@veteransflorida.org.

Section VII Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Corrections has issued an order disposing of the petition for declaratory statement filed by inmate Melvin Perez, DC# X11781 on September 27, 2019. The following is a summary of the agency's disposition of the petition:

The inmate Melvin Perez, DC# X11781, filed a Petition for Declaratory Statement regarding the application of unspecified statutes and Department rules related to the calculation of the Petitioner's gain time. As an inmate of the Florida Department of Corrections, the Petitioner may only participate in administrative proceedings that are brought pursuant to paragraphs 120.54(3)(c) and (7), Florida Statutes. Pursuant to subsection 120.81(3), Florida Statutes, the Petitioner lacks standing to bring a Petition for Declaratory Statement, and the Department lacks jurisdiction to issue a declaratory statement in this case.

A copy of the Order Disposing of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Shaveon Nelson, 501 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, shaveon.nelson@fdc.myflorida.com, (850)717-3605.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers has received a Petition for Declaratory Statement from John Kuhn, filed on October 14, 2019. The Petitioner did not identify a statute, rule, or order for the Council to interpret.

Except for good cause shown, motions for leave to intervene must be filed within 21 days after publication of this notice.

Copies of the petition may be obtained by contacting: Krista Woodard, Executive Director, Regulatory Council of Community Association Managers, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783, Krista.Woodard@myfloridalicense.com.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Finance

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Office of Financial Regulation has declined to rule on the petition for declaratory statement filed by Wirex USA Inc. on July 29, 2019. The following is a summary of the agency's declination of the petition: On October 23, 2019, the Florida Office of

Financial Regulation issued a Final Order on Petition for Declaratory Statement. The Petition filed by Wirex USA Inc. is DENIED. Petitioner asks whether it will be subject to Chapter 560, Florida Statutes, in conducting its proposed business activities. A declaratory statement is not available to Petitioner at this time because some of the facts provided in the Petition are not clearly delineated. Any further analysis regarding the Petition is unnecessary and the Office therefore makes no determination regarding the merits of Petitioner's arguments relating to this issue. *****The original petition was published July 31, 2019 in the Florida Administrative Register Volume 45, Number 148.

A copy of the Order Declining of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Office of Financial Regulation, P.O. Box 8050, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050, (850)410-9889, Agency.Clerk@flofr.com.

Please refer all comments to: Agency Clerk, Office of Financial Regulation, P.O. Box 8050, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050, (850)410-9889, Agency.Clerk@flofr.com.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Finance

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Office of Financial Regulation has issued an order disposing of the petition for declaratory statement filed by 36Money LLC. on August 01, 2019. The following is a summary of the agency's disposition of the petition: On October 23, 2019, a Final Order on the Petition was issued. The Office determined that Petitioner's activities do not fall within Florida's money services business licensing statutes and, therefore, Petitioner is not required to obtain a license as a money transmitter for its activities in the State of Florida. *****The original petition was published August 21, 2019 in the Florida Administrative Register Volume 45, Number 163.

A copy of the Order Disposing of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Agency Clerk, Office of Financial Regulation, P.O. Box 8050, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050, (850)410-9889, Agency.Clerk@flofr.com.

Please refer all comments to: Agency Clerk, Office of Financial Regulation, P.O. Box 8050, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-8050, (850)410-9889, Agency.Clerk@flofr.com.

Section VIII Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

**Section IX
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges**

NONE

**Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee**

NONE

**Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing**

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

University of North Florida

ITB 20-04 Beach Volleyball Court Construction

NOTICE TO GENERAL CONTRACTORS

INVITATION TO BID

ITB 20-04

The University of North Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate, announces that general contracting services are required for the construction of NCAA beach volleyball courts for the University of North Florida located at 1 UNF Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32224.

Project information

The scope of this project includes the construction of an outdoor sand volleyball court facility. Construction of this facility includes but is not limited to: five (5) NCAA courts with associated appurtenances, concrete curb, underdrain system, sand mix over a stone base, concrete sidewalk, concrete pad, potable water service, exterior shower, excavation and stockpile of topsoil and subsoils, fine grading, sod and erosion control. Site electrical improvements include the removal of an existing 100 amp, 240v panel and installation of a new panel in a Nema-3R enclosure at the same location. Install conduit and wiring to the new volleyball scoreboard as indicated on the drawings and install new quad receptacle at this location. The new scoreboard and metal bleachers will be provided and be

installed by others. No substitutions would be acceptable on the NCAA athletic post system for this project This work will begin in mid-December and be completed not later than January 31, 2020. See the construction plans/drawings for full scope of work.

The proposed schedule for this project is:

FAW Advertisement: October 24, 2019

Mandatory Pre-bid meeting: October 30, 2019, 10:00 a.m.

Questions Due: November 4, 2019

Bids Due: November 19, 2019, 2:00 p.m.

Firms wishing to apply for consideration shall submit the appropriate documents from RFQ 20-04 titled Beach Volleyball Court Construction.

Blanket liability insurance will be required for this project in the amount of \$2,000,000 and will be provided as part of the Basic Services (each, aggregate and per occurrence).

As required by §287.133, Fla. Stat., a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$15,000 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Solicitation documents, forms, drawings and descriptive project information may be obtained online at the UNF Procurement Services website at https://www.unf.edu/procurement/Bids_and_Notices.aspx.

Submit one complete copy of your firms bid per solicitation requirements. ITB submittals must be received no later than 2:00 p.m. on November 19, 2019. Facsimile (fax) or email submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION

Fire Rescue Vehicles, Ambulances and Other Equipment

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM

2617 MAHAN DRIVE

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32317-2519

Invitation to Bid

Bid Number: FSA20-VEF14.0

Bid Title: Fire Rescue Vehicles, Ambulances and Other Equipment

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting: January 14 & 15, 2020

Pre-Bid Meeting to be held at: Volusia County Emergency Operations Center, 3825 Tiger Bay Road, Daytona Beach, Florida 32124

Bid System Opens: February 3, 2020

Electronic Responses Due: March 2, 2020

Public Bid Opening: March 3, 2020

Bid Opening Location: Florida Sheriffs Association, 2617 Mahan Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32317-2519

The Florida Sheriffs Association (FSA), Florida Fire Chiefs Association (FFCA) and the Florida Association of Counties (FAC) invite interested bidders, including Fire Rescue Vehicles and Ambulance Manufacturers and Dealers/Certified Representatives to submit responses in accordance with these solicitation documents. The Florida Sheriffs Association will serve as the “Contract Administrator” in the solicitation process and the administration of the resulting contract. The purpose of this bid is to establish a thirty-six (36) month contract, beginning April 1, 2020 and ending March 31, 2023, with manufacturer’s authorized representatives for the purchase of new fire apparatus, fire vehicles and ambulances.

A copy of the Bid Calendar and announcements, including upcoming workshops, will be posted to the FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program web site: <https://www.flsheriffs.org/law-enforcement-programs/cooperative-purchasing-program/bid-announcements>

All prospective bidders are required to attend the mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting.

ADVERTISEMENT

Bid Name: Fire Rescue Vehicles, Ambulances and Other Equipment

Bid Number: FSA20-VEF14.0

The Florida Sheriffs Association (FSA), Florida Fire Chiefs Association (FFCA) and the Florida Association of Counties (FAC) invite interested bidders to submit electronic bid proposals for new fire apparatus, fire vehicles and ambulances, utilizing VendorLink, www.myvendorlink.com.

This contract shall be awarded to the lowest and best responsive qualified bidder by specification, manufacturer, by zone.

The Bidder warrants by virtue of bidding they are submitting a firm bid and prices quoted in their bid response will be good for an evaluation period of sixty (60) calendar days from the date of bid opening unless otherwise agreed to by the FSA.

Bidders are hereby advised that the Florida Sheriffs Association reserves the right to reject any and all bids, or separate portions thereof, and to waive any irregularity, technicality or omission if the FSA determines that doing so will serve in the FSA and purchaser best interest. The FSA may also reject any response not submitted in the manner specified by the solicitation documents.

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION

By: Craig Chown, Cooperative Purchasing Program Manager

PASCO COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

IFB-RR-19-245 CENTENNIAL PARK LIBRARY RENOVATION AND ADDITION

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID: The Pasco County Board of County Commissioners, Purchasing Department is soliciting formal, competitive, sealed bids from contractors for bid number IFB-RR-19-245, Centennial Park Library Renovation and Addition; Closing 11/19/2019, 1:45 p.m. More information at www.BidNetDirect.com.

**Section XII
Miscellaneous**

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraph 120.55(1)(b)6. – 7., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Thursday, October 17, 2019 and 3:00 p.m., Wednesday, October 23, 2019.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
6A-1.094123	10/17/2019	11/6/2019
19-8.010	10/23/2019	11/12/2019
59A-6.020	10/23/2019	11/12/2019
59A-11.024	10/17/2019	11/6/2019
59C-2.100	10/17/2019	11/6/2019
64B8-56.002	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.010	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.020	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.030	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.040	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.070	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.080	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.085	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.090	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.095	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.100	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.105	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.110	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.115	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.120	10/21/2019	11/10/2019

69B-232.130	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.140	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.150	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
69B-232.160	10/21/2019	11/10/2019
LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES		
Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
60FF1-5.009	7/21/2016	**/**/****
64B8-10.003	12/9/2015	**/**/****

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Citrus Equipment & Repair Inc. for the establishment of STAR low speed vehicles

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of Less than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that JH Global Services Inc. intends to allow the establishment of Citrus Equipment & Repair Inc. as a dealership for the sale of low-speed vehicles manufactured by JH Global Services Inc. (line-make STAR) at 6659 West Norvell Bryant Highway, Crystal River, (Citrus County), Florida 34429, on or after November 25, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Citrus Equipment & Repair Inc. are dealer operator(s): Glenn Yox, 6659 West Norvell Bryant Highway, Crystal River, Florida 34429, principal investor(s): Glenn Yox, 6659 West Norvell Bryant Highway, Crystal River, Florida 34429.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of less than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles,

Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Jane Zhang, JH Global Services Inc. 378 Neely Ferry Road, Simpsonville, South Carolina 29680.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Cloud9 By Design LLC d/b/a Beach' N Rides and Rentals for the establishment of HDKP

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA, intends to allow the establishment of Cloud9 By Design LLC, d/b/a Beach' N Rides and Rentals as a dealership for the sale of low-speed vehicles manufactured by HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA (line-make HDKP) at 8607 Cortez Road West, Bradenton, (Manatee County), Florida 34210, on or after November 25, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Cloud9 By Design LLC are dealer operator(s): Jeffrey Pansiera, 8607 Cortez Road West, Bradenton, Florida 34210; principal investor(s): Jeffrey Pansiera, 8607 Cortez Road West, Bradenton, Florida 34210.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Ling Han Cao, HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA, 15830 El Prado Road, Unit D, Chino, California 91708.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the

Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Eagle Custom Golf Carts LLC for the establishment of HDKP low speed vehicles

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of Less than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA, intends to allow the establishment of Eagle Custom Golf Carts LLC, as a dealership for the sale of low-speed vehicles manufactured by HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA (line-make HDKP) at 1955 Southwest Gatlin Boulevard, Port Saint Lucie, (St Lucie County), Florida 34953, on or after November 25, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Eagle Custom Golf Carts LLC are dealer operator(s): Richard Lucera, 1955 Southwest Gatlin Boulevard, Port Saint Lucie, Florida 34953, principal investor(s): Richard Lucera, 1955 Southwest Gatlin Boulevard, Port Saint Lucie, Florida 34953.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of less than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Ling Han Cao, HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA, 15830 El Prado Road, Unit D, Chino, California 91708.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Elite Carts for the establishment of HDKP low speed vehicles

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA, intends to allow the establishment of Elite Carts, as a dealership for the sale of low-speed vehicles manufactured by HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA (line-make HDKP) at 846 South Tamiami Trail, Osprey, (Sarasota County), Florida 34229, on or after November 25, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Elite Carts are dealer operator(s): Derrick Millsbaugh, 838 South Tamiami Trail, Osprey, Florida 34229; principal investor(s): Derrick Millsbaugh, 838 South Tamiami Trail, Osprey, Florida 34229.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Ling Han Cao, HDK Plastic Factory Ltd. Inc. USA, 15830 El Prado Road, Unit D, Chino, California 91708.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Division of Motor Vehicles

Street Side Scooters & Powersports LLC for the establishment of YNGF motorcycles

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that Pasando Resources, Inc. intends to allow the establishment of Street Side Scooters & Powersports LLC, as a dealership for the sale of motorcycles manufactured by Sanmen County Yongfu Machine Co. Ltd. (line-make YNGF) at 1650 Missouri Avenue North, Largo, (Pinellas County), Florida 33770, on or after November 25, 2019.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Street Side Scooters & Powersports LLC are dealer operator(s): Joe Romano, 1650 Missouri Avenue North, Largo, Florida 33770; principal investor(s): Joe Romano, 1650 Missouri Avenue North, Largo, Florida 33770.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Jaime Williams, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312 MS65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: Firas Abunabah, Pasando Resources, Inc., 9300 Harwin # C, Houston, Texas 77036.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
 State Revolving Fund Program
 NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY
 FLORIDA FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
 (FFONSI)
 CHARLOTTE COUNTY

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) has determined that the Charlotte County's Ingram Boulevard watermain project and two Myakka River crossing projects are not expected to generate controversy over potential environmental effects. The estimated project cost is \$8 million. The project may qualify for Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan composed of federal and state funds. DEP will

consider public comments about the environmental impacts of the proposed project that are postmarked or delivered at the address below within 30 days of this notice. A full copy of the FFONSI can be obtained by writing to Paul Brandl, SRF Program, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, calling (850)245-2986 or emailing paul.brandl@dep.state.fl.us.

Section XIII
 Index to Rules Filed During Preceding
 Week

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.